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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2012

Or

0O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 000-21088

VICAL INCORPORATED

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 93-0948554
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

10390 Pacific Center Court
San Diego, California 92121

(Address of principal executive offices (Zip code)

(858) 646-1100

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

(Former name, former address and former fiscal yearif changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports), and (2) has been subjec
to such filing requirements for the past 90 day¥es No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥ab site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRite 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405) duringpheceding 12 months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submdt gost such files). YedX] No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @aocelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large accelerated file O Accelerated filel

Non-accelerated file [ Smaller reporting compar [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act). Yes[ No
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date.

Total shares of common stock outstanding at Oct8beP012: 86,134,911
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ITEM1. FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ASSETS

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securities, availa-for-sale
Restricted cas
Receivables and other ass

Total current asse

Long-term investment
Property and equipment, r
Intangible assets, n

Other asset

Total asset

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

VICAL INCORPORATED
BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except par value data)
(Unaudited)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expei
Deferred revenu

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Deferred ren

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder' equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 5,000 share®dnéd, none issued and outstanc

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 160,000 shares apglalp 86,111 and 71,913 shares issued and

outstanding at September 30, 2012, and Decembe031, respectivel

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici

Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes to unaudited financialratiés

3

September 3C December 31
2012 2011
$ 53,15( $ 38,69¢

33,74 8,73:
3,05¢ 2,99¢
2,537 3,13(
92,48¢ 53,557
2,25(C 5,92¢
5,572 6,22¢
2,82 2,871

192 191

$ 103,32 $ 68,77
$ 5,591 $ 6,36
— 99
5,591 6,461
1,743 1,964

861 71¢
435,25: 384,08
(340,38 (325,034
265 58C
95,99! 60,34¢

$ 103,32 $ 68,77
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VICAL INCORPORATED
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2012 2011 2012 2011

Revenues

Contract and grant reven $168. $136( $ 4267 $ 2,60

License and royalty reveni 492 25,25¢ 10,93 25,47¢
Total revenue 2,17¢ 26,61¢ 15,20( 28,08t
Operating expense

Research and developmt 3,68 5,50¢ 13,90: 14,00«

Manufacturing and productic 3,85: 2,34: 9,25¢ 7,691

General and administrati 2,42( 2,37¢ 7,89¢ 7,161
Total operating expens: 9,95¢ 10,227 31,05 28,86:
Income (loss) from operatiol (7,780 16,39: (15,857 (77¢€)
Other income (expense

Investment and other income, | 54 39 507 107
Net income (loss $(7,720) $16,43. $(15,350) $ (669
Basic net income (loss) per shi $ (009 $ 028 $ (0.1 $ (0.0)
Diluted net income (loss) per sh: $ (009 $ 022 $ (0.1¢) $ (0.0))
Weighted average shares used in computing basiae@he (loss) per sha 86,40¢ 72,07t 85,76: 71,98
Weighted average shares used in computing diludéthoome (loss) per she 86,40¢ 73,73¢ 85,76: 71,98’
Comprehensive income (los $(7,680 $16,77: $(15,66H $ (190

See accompanying notes to unaudited financialratiés

4
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VICAL INCORPORATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby (used in) operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic
Write-off of abandoned paten
Gain on sale of property and equipm
Compensation expense related to stock options wadia
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Receivables and other ass
Accounts payable and accrued exper
Deferred revenu
Deferred ren

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from the sale of marketable secul
Maturities of marketable securiti
Purchases of marketable securi
Purchases of property and equipr
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipt
Patent expenditure
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Payment of withholding taxes for net settlementestricted stock unit
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

See accompanying notes to unaudited financialratiés

5

Nine Months Ended
September 30
2012 2011

$(15,350 $ (669

1,47¢ 1,74¢

71 —

9) —
2,57¢ 2,36(
592 (1,436
(816) (919)

(99 —
(176) (1129)
(11,730 97€

3,75(

13,95¢ 15,93(
(39,41) (22,549

(529) (290)

9 N
(31) (315)
(22,540 (7,229
48,93 13C
(201) (13)
48,73( @)

14,45¢ (6,252)
38,69¢ 47,32
$53,15(  $ 41,06t
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VICAL INCORPORATED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2012
(Unaudited)

1. GENERAL

Vical Incorporated, or the Company, a Delaware emfion, was incorporated in April 1987 and hasaded substantially all of its
resources since that time to its research and dewant programs. The Company researches and devalmgharmaceutical products basec
its patented DNA delivery technologies for the metion and treatment of serious or life-threaterdisgases.

All of the Company’s potential products are in s and development phases. No revenues havegbaerated from the sale of any
such products, nor are any such revenues expemted feast the next several years. The Compamseavenue from research and
development agreements with pharmaceutical colbrs and grant and contract arrangements withrgovent entities. Most of the
Company'’s product candidates will require significadditional research and development effortduding extensive preclinical and clinical
testing. All product candidates that advance toicdil testing will require regulatory approval prto commercial use, and will require
significant costs for commercialization. There t@no assurance that the Company’s research aetbgevent efforts, or those of its
collaborators, will be successful. The Company et continue to incur substantial losses andyanerate positive cash flows from
operations for at least the next several yearsag¢arance can be given that the Company can gerseifficient product revenue to become
profitable or generate positive cash flows fromragiens.

The unaudited financial statements at Septembe2@®I(®, and for the three and nine months ended:8dyar 30, 2012 and 2011, have
been prepared in accordance with the rules andatgns of the Securities and Exchange CommisgioSEC, and with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States applicabieterim financial statements. These unauditedrftial statements have been prepared on
the same basis as the audited financial stateraadticlude all adjustments, consisting of onlymalrrecurring accruals, which in the opinion
of management are necessary to present fairly timep@ny’s financial position as of the interim datel results of operations for the interim
periods presented. Interim results are not nedgssgaticative of results for a full year or futuperiods. The preparation of financial statem:
requires management to make estimates and assasfiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finamstialements and the reported amounts of revenukesxaenses during the reporting period. Ac
results could differ materially from those estinsat€hese unaudited financial statements shoulédi in conjunction with the Company’s
audited financial statements for the year endeceBer 31, 2011, included in its Annual Report omi&0-K filed with the SEC.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash andyHighld securities with original maturities at thate of acquisition of ninety days or
less. Investments with an original maturity of mtiran ninety days are considered marketable sexsighd have been classified by
management as available-for-sale. These investraeatsassified as current assets, even thougstated maturity date may be one year or
more beyond the current balance sheet date whilglti® management’s intention to use the proceeuis §ales of these securities to fund its
operations, as necessary. Such investments areccatrfair value, with unrealized gains and lossekided as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. Realized gains and losse®s fitte sale of available-for-sale securities orahmunts, net of tax, reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income, if anydatermined on a specific identification basis.

Restricted Cas

The Company is required to maintain a letter oflitreecuring an amount equal to twelve months efdirrent monthly installment of
base rent for the term of its primary facilitieasge, which ends in August 2017. Under certain nistances the Company may be able to
eliminate the need for the letter of credit. AsSejptember 30, 2012, and December 31, 2011, restrietsh of $3.1 and $3.0 million,
respectively was pledged as collateral for thitetedf credit.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue is recognized when the four basic critefri@venue recognition are met: (1) persuasiveendd of an arrangement exists;
(2) delivery has occurred or services renderedth@Yee is fixed or determinable; and (4) collbiity is reasonably assured. Certain of the
Company’s revenue is generated through manufagteontracts and stand-alone license agreements.

6
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The Company has entered into multiple-element gearents. In order to account for the multiple-elet@@rangements, the Company
identifies the deliverables included within theegmnent and evaluates which deliverables represpatate units of accounting. Analyzing the
arrangement to identify deliverables requires the af judgment, and each deliverable may be agatnin to deliver services, a right or
license to use an asset, or another performanaatibh.

Effective January 1, 2011, the Company followspgtmvisions of ASU No. 2009-13 “Multiple-DeliverabRevenue Arrangementfir all
multiple element agreements, including contract ufaeturing, contract services and license agreesnéimder the revised guidance, the
delivered item(s) has value to the customer omadstione basis and, if the arrangement includenargl right of return relative to the
delivered item, delivery or performance of the Uivaeed item(s) is considered probable and subisténin the Company’s control.

A delivered item is considered a separate unitobanting when the delivered item has value tgoiener on a standalone basis based
on the consideration of the relevant facts anduairstances for each arrangement. Factors considetieid determination include the research
capabilities of the partner and the availability@$earch expertise in this field in the generalketplace. Arrangement consideration is
allocated at the inception of the agreement tadeltified units of accounting based on their ietaselling price. The relative selling price for
each deliverable is determined using vendor spesffjective evidence, or VSOE, of selling pricehord-party evidence of selling price if
VSOE does not exist. If neither VSOE nor third-gavtidence of selling price exists, the Companslitebest estimate of the selling price for
the deliverable. The amount of allocable arrangdroensideration is limited to amounts that aredixe determinable. The consideration
received is allocated among the separate unitsaafuanting, and the applicable revenue recognititier@a are applied to each of the separate
units. Changes in the allocation of the sales grete/een delivered and undelivered elements caadhmpvenue recognition but do not change
the total revenue recognized under any agreenfdatts and circumstances dictate that the licérasestandalone value from the undelivered
items, which generally include research and devetnt services and the manufacture of drug prodtiedjcense is identified as a separate
unit of accounting and the amounts allocated tditemse are recognized upon the delivery of tbense, assuming the other revenue
recognition criteria have been met. However, ifdhgounts allocated to the license through theivelaelling price allocation exceed the
upfront license fee, the amount recognized uporétieery of the license is limited to the upfrdeé received. If facts and circumstances
dictate that the license does not have standalale vthe transaction price, including any upfiar@nse fee payments received, are allocated
to the identified separate units of accounting lodgnized as those items are delivered.

The terms of the Company’s partnership agreementsdge for milestone payments upon achievemenedfm regulatory and
commercial events. Effective January 1, 2011, tom@any adopted on a prospective basis the Milesiathod of accounting under ASU
2010-17. Under the Milestone Method, the Companggaizes consideration that is contingent uporatttéevement of a milestone in its
entirety as revenue in the period in which the stidae is achieved only if the milestone is substarit its entirety. A milestone is considered
substantive when it meets all of the following #haziteria: 1) The consideration is commensurate wither the entity’s performance to
achieve the milestone or the enhancement of theevafl the delivered item(s) as a result of a speoiitcome resulting from the entity’s
performance to achieve the milestone, 2) The cenaitbn relates solely to past performance, arithg)consideration is reasonable relative to
all of the deliverables and payment terms withim @dlhrangement. A milestone is defined as an evjttia¢ can only be achieved based in wi
or in part on either the entity’s performance ottloa occurrence of a specific outcome resultingnftbe entity’s performance, (i) for which
there is substantive uncertainty at the date tr@gement is entered into that the event will beeaed and (iii) that would result in additional
payments being due to the Company.

Contract Services, Grant and Royalty Revenue

The Company recognizes revenues from contractceenand federal government research grants duréngeriod in which the related
expenditures are incurred and related paymenthése services are received or collection is resslgrassured. Royalties to be received bi
on sales of licensed products by the Company’sipestincorporating the Company’s licensed technolog recognized when received.

7
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Net Loss Per Shai

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share kaa lbomputed using the weighted-average numbdranés of common stock
outstanding during the period. The weighted averageber of shares used to compute diluted netdesshare excludes any assumed exerci:
of stock options and warrants, and any assumedrnsgsuof common stock under restricted stock uoit®SUs, as the effect would be
antidilutive. Common stock equivalents of 1.6 roiflifor the three months ended September 30, 20412 @xcluded from the calculation
because of their antidilutive effect. Common stegkiivalents of 1.5 million and 1.3 million for théne months ended September 30, 2012 an
2011, respectively, were excluded from the caloafabecause of their antidilutive effect.

The weighted average number of shares used to derdputed net income per share includes any assguxercise of stock options
under the treasury stock method, and the assursedrise of common stock under RSUs. Common stodkaquts of 1.7 million for the thre
months ended September 30, 2011, were includdtkinalculation of diluted net income per share.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardasr&cor FASB, issued authoritative guidance regardomprehensive income. This
newly issued accounting standard allows an ertityave the option to present the components ahaeme and comprehensive income in
either one or two consecutive financial statemere. guidance eliminates the current option to mepihher comprehensive income and its
components in the statement of changes in stockhslldquity. While the new guidance changes thequration of comprehensive income,
there are no changes to the components that argmeed in net income or other comprehensive inconger current accounting guidance.
The guidance was effective for fiscal years andrint periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Cbepany adopted these provisions ¢
January 1, 2012. The adoption did not have a naienpact on the Company’s financial position sulés of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidaregarding common fair value measurements andadisod requirements in
U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles amgtnational Financial Reporting Standards. Thiglpéssued accounting standard clari
the application of certain existing fair value maasnent guidance and expands the disclosuresifordlme measurements that are estimated
using significant unobservable inputs. This guigawas effective on a prospective basis for annudlimterim reporting periods beginning on
or after December 15, 2011. The Company adoptestthmvisions as of January 1, 2012. The adopinat have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position or results of operasio

2. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Total stock-based compensation expense was altbtatesearch and development, manufacturing amduption and general and
administrative expense as follows (in thousands):

Three Months

Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Research and development $245  $22¢ $ 80 $ 727
Manufacturing and productic 53 43 15¢ 12t
General and administrati 437 47E 1,617 1,50¢
Total stockbased compensation expel $73¢ $747 $2,57¢ $2,36(

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012@hd, the Company granted stdzksed awards with a total estimated value of
million and $3.8 million, respectively. At Septem!3®, 2012, total unrecognized estimated compesrsatipense related to unvested stock-
based awards granted prior to that date was $3lidmiwhich is expected to be recognized over &gived-average period of 1.6 years. Stock
based awards granted during the nine months englet@i@ber 30, 2012 and 2011, were equal to 2.298 4%, respectively, of outstanding
shares of common stock at the end of the appliqadried.
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3. OTHER BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS
Accounts payable and accrued expenses consistbd @fllowing (in thousands):

September 3C December 31

2012 2011
Clinical trial accruals $ 957 $ 1,681
Employee compensatic 3,19¢ 3,65:
Accounts payabl 65¢ 351
Other accrued liabilitie 77€ 677
Total accounts payable and accrued expe $ 5,591 $ 6,362

4. MARKETABLE SECURITIES, AVAILABLE FOR SALE
The following is a summary of available for salerkedable securities (in thousands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Market
September 30, 201 Cost Gain Loss Value
U.S. treasuries $10,11( $ 1 $ — $10,11:
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit 10,86( — 1 10,85¢
Corporate bond 12,571 — 4 12,57:
Certificates of depos 20C — — 20C
$33,74" $ 1 $ 5 $33,74:
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Market
December 31, 201 Cost Gain Loss Value
U.S. treasuries $ 1,00¢ $ 2 $ — $1,01(
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit 7,20( — 2 7,19¢
Certificates of depos 52t — — 52E
$ 8,73t $ 2 $ 2 $8,73:

At September 30, 2012, $13.4 million of these séesrwere scheduled to mature outside of one yidar.Company did not realize any
gains or losses on sales of available-for-salerg@mifor the nine months ended September 30, 2848 2f September 30, 2012, none of the
securities had been in a continuous unrealizeddostion longer than one year.

5. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

In March 2012, the Company sold two auction rateigges classified as longrm investments with a par value of $4.0 millibrcluded
in interest and other income for the nine monthdeenSeptember 30, 2012, is a gain of $0.3 millelated to the sale.

As of September 30, 2012, the Company held an@uctite security with a par value of $2.5 millidis auction rate security has not
experienced a successful auction since the liquigiiues experienced in the global credit and abpiarkets in 2008. As a result the security i
classified as a long-term investment as it is saletito mature in 2038. The security was rated BgEStandard and Poor’s as of
September 30, 2012. The security continues to qaydst according to its stated terms.

The valuation of the Company’s auction rate segusisubject to uncertainties that are difficulppr@dict. The fair value of the security is
estimated utilizing a discounted cash flow analyEie key drivers of the valuation model include #xpected term, collateralization
underlying the security investment, the creditwioitlss of the counterparty, the timing of expecteadre cash flows, discount rates, liquidity
and the expected holding period. The security i&s @mpared, when possible, to other observabl&ehdata for securities with similar
characteristics. Based on the valuation of theritgcthe Company has recognized cumulative los$&9.5 million as of September 30, 2012,
none of which were realized during the
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three or nine months ended September 30, 2012lo8kes when recognized are included in investmahbéher income. The market value of
the security has partially recovered. Includedthieo comprehensive income are unrealized gaing.df illion and $0.3 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, resplgcihs of September 30, 2012, the Company haddecocumulative unrealized gains
$0.4 million. The resulting carrying value of thection rate security at September 30, 2012, wa3 $@lion. Any future decline in market
value may result in additional losses being recoggphi

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company measures fair value as an exit peggesenting the amount that would be receivedit@aseasset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants at the measurement date. As suchvdhie is a market-based measurement that
should be determined based on assumptions thaemaakticipants would use in pricing an assetatility. Fair value measurements are b
on a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which priaes the inputs used in measuring fair value devis:

* Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted pricastive markets
» Level 2: Inputs, other than the quoted prices tivaanarkets, that are observable either direatlindirectly; anc

» Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there idditir no market data, which require the reportintitg to develop its own
assumptions

Cash equivalents, marketable securities and lomg-t@vestments measured at fair value are clagdsifi¢he table below in one of the
three categories described above (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements

September 30, 201, Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Certificates of deposit $ 20 $ — $ — $ 20C
Money market fund 27,69: — — 27,69:
U.S. treasurie 10,11: — — 10,11:
Corporate bond — 12,57 — 12,57:
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit — 10,85¢ — 10,85¢
Auction rate securitie — — 2,25( 2,25(

$38,00¢ $23,43. $2,25( $63,68¢

Fair Value Measurements

December 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Certificates of deposit $ 528 $ — $ — $ 52t
Money market fund 12,77¢ — — 12,77¢
U.S. treasurie 1,01( — — 1,01(
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit — 7,19¢ — 7,19¢
Auction rate securitie — — 5,92¢ 5,92¢

$14,31: $7,19¢ $5,92¢ $27,43¢

The Company'’s investments in U.S. treasury seegiitertificates of deposit and money market fiardssalued based on publicly
available quoted market prices for identical sdigias of September 30, 2012. The Company detesntiire fair value of corporate bonds and
other government-sponsored enterprise relatedisesurith the aid of valuations provided by thpdrties using proprietary valuation models
and analytical tools. These valuation models aradyéinal tools use market pricing or similar instrents that are both objective and publicly
available, including matrix pricing or reporteddes, benchmark yields, broker/dealer quotes, issureads, two-sided markets, benchmark
securities, bids and/or offers. The Company vadisidhe valuations received from its primary prichegdors for its level 2 securities by
examining the inputs used in that vendor’s prigingcess and determines whether they are reasoaatblebservable. The Company also
compares those valuations to recent reported tfadéisose securities. The Company did not adjogtaf the valuations received from these
independent third parties with respect to anyfatel 2 securities at September 30, 2012. Thepgaomdid not reclassify any investments
between level categories during the nine monthge®kptember 30, 2012. The valuation of the Comipamyestments in auction rate
securities are more fully described in Note 5.

10
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Activity for assets measured at fair value usirgg#icant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is preséritethe table below (in thousands):

Nine Months
Ended
September 3C
2012
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 5,92¢
Total net realized gains included in earni (590
Total net unrealized gains included in other corensive incom: 72
Sales of Level 3 securiti¢ (3,160
Balance at September 30, 2( $  2,25(
Total gains or losses for the period included inineome attributable to the change
in unrealized gains or losses relating to ass#tistd at the reporting da $ —

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company prosecutes its intellectual propertgtessigorously to obtain the broadest valid scigpets patents. Due to uncertainty of
the ultimate outcome of patent enforcement actithresy impact on future operating results or thenpany’s financial condition is not subject
to reasonable estimates.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company Ibeapme a party to lawsuits involving various nratt&he Company is unaware of
any such lawsuits presently pending against it iyhindividually or in the aggregate, are deemebeanaterial to the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

8. STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

In January 2012, the Company sold 13,909,692 sluhiiescommon stock in a public offering at a prio the public of $3.75 per share.
Net proceeds from the offering, after deductingamditing discounts and commissions and other offpexpenses payable by the Compe
totaled $48.7 million. All of the shares of commainck were offered pursuant to two effective shedfistration statements.

9. ASTELLAS AGREEMENTS

In July 2011, the Company entered into licenseegents with Astellas Pharma Inc., or Astellas, ingrAstellas exclusive, worldwide,
royalty-bearing licenses under certain of the Camyfsaknow-how and intellectual property to develoll commercialize certain products
containing plasmids encoding certain forms of cyggalovirus, or CMV, glycoprotein B and/or phosphaipm 65, including TransVax™ but
excluding CyMVectin™.

Under the terms of the license agreements, Astpiasa nonrefundable upfront license fee of $25illon in 2011. The Company also
received an additional $10.0 million milestone paytupon finalization of the general trial designd Phase 3 registration trial of
TransVax™ in hematopoietic stem cell transplanipieats which occurred in March of 2012. The Compeetognized $10.5 million in
license revenue under the Astellas agreementsgitirennine months ended September 30, 2012, whathded the aforementioned $10.0
million milestone.

In August 2012 the Company amended its licensesapgly agreements with Astellas to, among othegshi extend the time period that
the Company is obligated to supply licensed praaltmt commercial use to Astellas, at Astellaspense, modify the allocation of $95.0 mill
of milestone payments among certain milestonesifircommercial launch and modify the structurehefroyalties on net sales from a fixed
double digit royalty to tiered double digit royaki.

Under the terms of the agreements the Compangasparforming research and development serviceshwdrie being paid for by
Astellas. During the three and nine months endede®gber 30, 2012, the Company recognized $1.6anidind $3.9 million, respectively, of
revenue related to these contract services.
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10. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On November 7, 2012, the Company entered into afh&tMarket Equity Offering Sales Agreement witifedt Nicolaus & Company,
Incorporated, or Stifel, under which the Company isaue and sell up to $50,000,000 of shares ofoommon stock from time to time. Under
the Sales Agreement, the Company will set the patars for the sale of shares, including the nurobshares to be issued and any minimum
price below which sales may not be made. Subjetttdderms and conditions of the Sales Agreembates may be sold through Stifel acting
as sales agent or directly to Stifel acting asqgipal, by means of ordinary brokers’ transactiongfee NASDAQ Global Market, in privately
negotiated transactions or otherwise at markeepnrevailing at the time of sale, at prices relateprevailing market prices or at negotiated
prices. Any sales other than by methods deemed tmlfat the marketffering as defined in Rule 415 promulgated untier$ecurities Act «
1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, will negthie Company’s prior consent. Stifel is obligaiedise commercially reasonable efforts in
conducting sales activities consistent with itsalrtrading and sales practices. The Sales Agreemay be terminated by the Company upor
prior notice to Stifel or by Stifel upon prior nod to the company, or at any time under certatuaistances, including but not limited to the
occurrence of a material adverse change in the aoynp

The Sales Agreement provides that Stifel will batlenl to compensation for its services in an amair2.5% of the gross proceeds from
the sale of shares sold through Stifel under thesS&greement. The company has no obligation fcasgl shares under the Sales Agreement,
and may at any time suspend offers under the 3@ement. The Company agreed in the Sales Agream@novide indemnification and
contribution to Stifel against certain liabilitigacluding liabilities under the Securities Act,dato reimburse Stifel for certain legal expenses
incurred in connection with the Sales Agreement.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, or Report, aorg forward-looking statements within the mearoh&ection 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of tharies Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, includbatements regarding our business,
financial position, the research and developmemi@iharmaceutical products based on our patenkéd @elivery technologies, the funding
of our research and development efforts, and ataements describing our goals, expectationstiotes or beliefs. Such statements reflect
our current views and assumptions and are sulgjettks and uncertainties, particularly those ienéin the process of developing and
commercializing biopharmaceutical products basedwmpatented DNA delivery technologies. Actuautesscould differ materially from tho:
projected herein. Factors that could cause or ibané to such differences include, but are nottkhito, those discussed in our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 28dd.,in our other filings with the SEC, and thosentified in Part II, ltem 1A entitled
“Risk Factors” beginning on page 22 of this RepAg.a result, you are cautioned not to rely onéHesward-looking statements. We disclaim
any duty to update any forward-looking statemeneftect events or circumstances that occur afterdiate on which such statement is made.

Overview

We research and develop biopharmaceutical prodhastsd on our patented DNA delivery technologiestferprevention and treatment
of serious or life-threatening diseases. We belibedollowing areas of research offer the gregtestntial for neaterm commercialization fc
us and our partners:

* Vaccines for use in hi¢-risk populations for infectious disease targetsafhich there are significant nee:

» Vaccines for general pediatric, adolescent andtguydulations for infectious disease applicatic

» Cancer vaccines or immunotherapies that complemangxisting programs and core expertise;

* Gene¢based delivery of therapeutic proteins, such agogegic growth factors for treatment of cardiovdacudiseases

We currently have three active independent clirécal preclinical development programs in the aodasfectious disease and cancer
including:

« Afully enrolled ongoing Phase 3 clinical trial ngiour Allovectin® immunotherapeutic in patientshwitetastatic melanoma which
has been funded, up to certain limits, by AnGes M@.,, or AnGes, through cash payments and equtystments under a resea
and development agreeme

« A completed preclinical program, with an allowesdstigational new drug application, or IND, using €yMVectin™
prophylactic vaccine formulated with our proprigt&faxfectin® adjuvant to prevent CMV infection bedfcend during pregnancy;
and

* A preclinical program with therapeutic and propleyiavaccines for herpes simplex virus type 2 folaied with our proprietary
Vaxfectin® adjuvant.

We have leveraged our patented technologies thrbegysing and collaboration arrangements, suduadicensing arrangements with
Astellas, Merck & Co., Inc., or Merck, Sanofi, BakMyers Squibb Company, or Bristol-Myers SquiBinGes, Aqua Health Ltd. of Canada,
or Agqua Health, an affiliate of Novartis Animal Heés and Merial Limited, or Merial, a subsidiary 8&nofi, among other biopharmaceutical
companies.

In addition, we have licensed complementary teabgiiek from leading research institutions and bioplaaeutical companies. We also
have granted non-exclusive, academic licensesnt®iA delivery technology patent estate to 11 legdiesearch institutions including
Stanford, Harvard, Yale and the Massachusettguitstdf Technology, or MIT. The non-exclusive aaadelicenses allow university
researchers to use our technology free of changediacational and internal, non-commercial reseptgposes. In exchange, we have the
option to exclusively license from the universitpstential commercial applications arising fromithese of our technology on terms to be
negotiated.
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Product Development

We, together with our licensees and collaboratme currently developing a number of DNA-based waand therapeutics for the
prevention or treatment of infectious diseases¢ceaand cardiovascular diseases. The table belownsuizes our independent programs and

corporate and government collaborations.

Product/Concept

Intended Use Development Status!

Lead Developer

I ndependent Programs

Allovectin ® cancer immunotherapeutic First-line treatment for metastatic Phase 3 Vical
melanome
CyMVectin™ prophylactic vaccine for Prevent infection before pregnancy to  Allowed Investigational Vical
cytomegalovirus preclude fetal transmission New Drug
Application
Therapeutic and prophylactic vaccines for Prevent and protect against recurring flar@reclinical Vical
herpes simplex type 2 virus ups, reduce viral shedding and
transmissior
Corporate Collaborations
TransVax™ therapeutic vaccine for Protect against CMV infection after stem Phase 3 preparation Astellas
cytomegalovirus cell transplant:
TransVax™ therapeutic vaccine for Protect against CMV infection after solid Phase 2 preparation Astellas
cytomegalovirus organ transplant
Collategene® angiogenic therapy encoding  Induce local growth of blood vessels to Phase 3 preparation AnGes
Hepatocyte Growth Factor restore blood flow to limbs affected by
critical limb ischemie
Apex® -IHN prophylactic vaccine for Prevent infection and disease in farm-  Marketed in Canada Aqua Health
infectious hematopoietic necrosis virus raised salmon when exposed to infected (Novartis)
wild salmon
ONCEPT™ therapeutic cancer vaccine Adjunct treatment to increase survival tii Marketed in the United Merial
encoding human tyrosina of dogs with oral melanon States
Government Collaborations
Prophylactic and/or therapeutic HIV vaccine Prevent and/or treat infection, disease, Phase 2b NIH

and/or viral sheddin

Tetravalent dengue vaccine

Prevent dengue disease caused by all 4 Phase 1
dengue serotype

Naval Medical
Research Centt

“Research” indicates exploration and/or evaluatiba potential product candidate in a noncliniedldratory setting. “Preclinical”

indicates that a specific product candidate inctinical setting has shown functional activity ttirelevant to a targeted medical need,
and is advancing toward initial human clinical itegt “Phase 1” clinical trials are typically conded with a small number of patients or
healthy subjects to evaluate safety, determindeack#sage range, identify side effects, and, isfms, gain early evidence of
effectiveness. “Phase 2” clinical trials are cortddawith a larger group of patients to evaluateaffeness of an investigational product
for a defined patient population, and to deterntimemon short-term side effects and risks associaittdthe product candidate. “Phase
3” clinical trials involve large scale, multi-centeomparative trials that are conducted with pasi@fflicted with a target disease to
evaluate the overall benerisk relationship of the investigational productlan provide an adequate basis for product labe
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Recent Events
The following events have recently occurred witbpect to our business and our development programs:

* In September 2012, we entered into a worldwideerolusive license with Bristol-Myers Squibb for quatented platform DNA
immunization technology and our Vaxfectin adjuvimtuse in the production of antibodies. Underdagesement, Bristol-Myers
Squibb will use our technology to generate antibsdvith potential therapeutic uses in humans. Wlealsio provide specified
guantities of the Vaxfecti® adjuvant to Brist-Myers Squibb from time to tim

* In October 2012, George J. Morrow, former Executiiee President of Global Commercial Operation8mgen, Inc., was
appointed to Vical's Board of Directors. Mr. Morrtsaprevious career encompassed significant accemplents in commercial
operations, sales and marketing through a prognesdiexecutive management positions at Merck alag@Wellcome plc

* In September 2012, we conducted a comprehensivepsofeall active clinical sites in our Phase 3 &é#otin® melanoma trial to
eliminate any time lag in death event reportinge $tweep confirmed that the target number of eveadaot been reached. Based
on the moving average monthly event rate, we reiiae projection for reaching the target numbedexdith events to m-2013.

Research, Development and Manufacturing Programs

To date, we have not received revenues from tleecfadur independently developed pharmaceuticalywts and have received minimal
revenues from the sale of commercially marketedipets by our licensees. We earn revenues by peirigragrvices under research and
development and manufacturing contracts, from grantl from licensing access to our proprietaryrieldgies. Since our inception, we
estimate that we have received approximately $2d®libn in revenues from these sources. Revenyesohrce were as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

Source 2012 2011 2012 2011
Astellas supply and services contract $ 1€ $ 1.z $ 3.9 $ 1.2
RapidResponse™ DNA manufacturing gr — — — 0.¢
HSV-2 grant — — — 0.2
Other contract and grar 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.3
Total contract and grant revent 1.7 1.4 4.3 2.€
Astellas licenst $ 0.2 $ 25.1 $ 10. $ 25.1
Other royalties and licens 0.3 0.1 0.4 0.4
Total royalty and license revenu 0.5 25.2 10.€ 25.5
Total revenue: $ 2.2 $ 26.€ $ 15.2 $ 28.1

Research, development, manufacturing and productists by major program, as well as other costeg ag follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
Program 2012 2011 2012 2011
Allovectin® $ 4.C $ 4.7 $ 11.7 $ 13.C
CmVv 2.2 2.4 7.3 5.1
Other research, development, manufacturing andugtamh 1.3 0.7 4.2 2.7
Total research, development, manufacturing andymtich $ 7E $ 7.8 $ 23.2 $ 21.7

Since our inception through September 30, 2012 stienate that we have spent approximately $466amithn research, development,
manufacturing and production. Our current indepandevelopment focus is on our cancer immunotherapdallovectin® , novel DNA
vaccines for CMV and HSV-2, and other clinical gmdclinical targets.

We are conducting a Phase 3 clinical trial usinigvdctin® in patients with recurrent metastatic melma which has been funded, up to
certain limits, by AnGes through cash paymentseandty investments under a research and
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development agreement. We are also developing Vexi¥, CyMVectin™, and HSV-2 vaccine candidates #rese programs, excluding
TransVax™ which we recently licensed to Astellasl, rgquire significant additional funds to advartbeough development to
commercialization. From inception through Septen8#r2012, we have spent approximately $162 miliorour Allovectin® program and
$72 million on our CMV programs.

We have other product candidates in the reseaage stt can take many years to develop productidates from the initial decision to
screen product candidates, perform preclinicalsaifdty studies, and perform clinical trials leadimgto possible approval of a product by the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, or comgide foreign agencies. The outcome of the resdaneshknown until each stage of the
testing is completed, up through and includingréiggstration of clinical trials. Accordingly, weeunable to predict which potential product
candidates we may proceed with, the time and cosbiinplete development, and ultimately whether wehave a product approved by the
FDA or comparable foreign agencies.

As a result, we expect to incur substantial opegaltisses for at least the next several yearspdoerily to the advancement of our
research and development programs, the cost difioat studies and clinical trials, spending fartgside services, costs related to maintaining
our intellectual property portfolio, costs due tammfacturing activities, costs related to our fées, and possible advancement toward
commercialization activities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accacdamith accounting principles generally acceptethéUnited States requires that
management make a humber of assumptions and estithat affect the reported amounts of assetdljtied) revenues and expenses in our
financial statements and accompanying notes. Managebases its estimates on historical informadioth assumptions believed to be
reasonable. Although these estimates are basednagament’s best knowledge of current events andrmstances that may impact us in the
future, actual results may differ from these estesa

Our critical accounting policies are those thagetffour financial statements materially and invav&gnificant level of judgment by
management. Our critical accounting policies rey@rdevenue recognition are in the following ardegnse and royalty agreements,
manufacturing contracts, contract services andtgeaenues. Our critical accounting policies alsdide recognition of research and
development expenses and the valuation of longtare intangible assets.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when the four basic critefri@venue recognition are met: (1) persuasiveendd of an arrangement exists;
(2) delivery has occurred or services renderedth@Xee is fixed or determinable; and (4) collbiity is reasonably assured. Certain of our
revenue is generated through manufacturing costaatd stand-alone license agreements.

We have entered into multiple-element arrangemémistder to account for the multiple-element agements, we identify the
deliverables included within the agreement anduatal which deliverables represent separate unasarfunting. Analyzing the arrangemen
identify deliverables requires the use of judgmant] each deliverable may be an obligation to dekervices, a right or license to use an ¢
or another performance obligation.

Effective January 1, 2011, we followed the provisi@of ASU No. 2009-13 for all multiple element agreents, including contract
manufacturing, contract services and license ageetsnUnder the revised guidance, the delivered(gghas value to the customer on a
standalone basis and, if the arrangement includemaral right of return relative to the delivertsn, delivery or performance of the
undelivered item(s) is considered probable andtanbially in our control.

A delivered item is considered a separate unicobanting when the delivered item has value tqoméner on a standalone basis based
on the consideration of the relevant facts anduarstances for each arrangement. Factors considetieid determination include the research
capabilities of the partner and the availability@$earch expertise in this field in the generaletplace. Arrangement consideration is
allocated at the inception of the agreement talelttified units of accounting based on their ietaselling price. The relative selling price for
each deliverable is determined using vendor speafijective evidence, or VSOE, of selling pricdhdird-party evidence of selling price if
VSOE does not exist. If neither VSOE nor third-patidence of selling price exists, we use our bssitnate of the selling price for the
deliverable. The amount of allocable
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arrangement consideration is limited to amountsdhafixed or determinable. The consideration ikexkis allocated among the separate unit:
of accounting, and the applicable revenue recagnitiiteria are applied to each of the separatis.u@hanges in the allocation of the sales
price between delivered and undelivered elememtsropact revenue recognition but do not changedta revenue recognized under any
agreement. If facts and circumstances dictatettigalicense has standalone value from the undelivitems, which generally include research
and development services and the manufacture gfghaducts, the license is identified as a sepanaiteof accounting and the amounts
allocated to the license are recognized upon theet of the license, assuming the other revermeoegnition criteria have been met. However
if the amounts allocated to the license throughrétegtive selling price allocation exceed the upfriicense fee, the amount recognized upol
delivery of the license is limited to the upfroeefreceived. If facts and circumstances dictatetigalicense does not have standalone valu
transaction price, including any upfront license payments received, are allocated to the idedtffeparate units of accounting and recogn
as those items are delivered.

The terms of our partnership agreements providenftastone payments upon achievement of certainlaéayy and commercial events.
Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted on a prosmebasis the Milestone Method of accounting ursigt 2010-17. Under the Milestone
Method, we recognize consideration that is contimgg@on the achievement of a milestone in its etytias revenue in the period in which the
milestone is achieved only if the milestone is saibsve in its entirety. A milestone is consideredbstantive when it meets all of the following
three criteria: 1) The consideration is commengwath either the entity’s performance to achigwe milestone or the enhancement of the
value of the delivered item(s) as a result of a#jgeoutcome resulting from the entity’s perforntarto achieve the milestone, 2) The
consideration relates solely to past performance, 3 The consideration is reasonable relativdl tof dhe deliverables and payment terms
within the arrangement. A milestone is definedragwent (i) that can only be achieved based in &bolin part on either the entity’s
performance or on the occurrence of a specificau&resulting from the entity’s performance, @y fvhich there is substantive uncertainty at
the date the arrangement is entered into thatwbetevill be achieved and (iii) that would resultadditional payments being due to us.

Contract Services, Grant and Royalty Revenue

We recognize revenue from contract services anerédovernment research grants during the peniechich the related expenditures
are incurred and related payments for those serapereceived or collection is reasonably assiReyalties to be received based on sales of
licensed products by our partners incorporatinglicensed technology are recognized when received.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist of egigesirred in performing research and developmetitities including salaries and
benefits, facilities and other overhead expendascal trials, contract services and other outsdpenses. Research and development expen:
are charged to operations as they are incurred.

We assess our obligations to make milestone paytleat may become due for licensed or acquirecht#dolyy to determine whether the
payments should be expensed or capitalized. Weehailestone payments to research and developmpahse when:
. The technology is in the early stage of developra@thas no alternative us
. There is substantial uncertainty of the technologgroduct being successfi
. There will be difficulty in completing the remaimjrdevelopment; an
. There is substantial cost to complete the w

Capitalization and Valuation of Long-Lived and I ntangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives consistapitalized legal costs incurred in connectigthywatents, patent applications pending
and technology license agreements. Payments téra@jlicense to use a proprietary technology apétalized if the technology is expected to
have alternative future use in multiple researat @evelopment projects. We amortize costs of aga@atents, patent applications pending
and license agreements over their estimated ulbeds| or terms of the agreements, whichever aoetsh

For patents pending, we amortize the costs oveshibeer of a period of twenty years from the ddtiling the application or, if license
the term of the license agreement. We re-assessstial lives of patents when they are issued,l@never events or changes in circumstance
indicate the useful lives may have changed. Famiatand patent applications pending that we ablgivae charge the remaining unamortized
accumulated costs to expense.
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Intangible assets and long-lived assets are ewaldat impairment at least annually or wheneveng&yer changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying value may not be regzable. If the review indicates that intangiblests®r long-lived assets are not recoverable,
their carrying amount would be reduced to fair ealsactors we consider important that could triggemmpairment review include the
following:

. A significant change in the manner of our use efahquired asset or the strategy for our overalinmss; and/c
. A significant negative industry or economic tre

In the event we determine that the carrying vafuatangible assets or long-lived assets is notvetable based upon the existence of
one or more of the above indicators of impairmesgt,may be required to record impairment chargeghiese assets. As of September 30, 2
our largest group of intangible assets with fiites included patents and patents pending folD0WA delivery technology, consisting of
intangible assets with a net carrying value of apjpnately $2.7 million.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For information on the recent accounting pronoureimiwhich may impact our business, see Note heoRNbtes to Financial Stateme
included in this Report.

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended September 30, 2012, Compared with Three Months Ended September 30, 2011

Total RevenuesTotal revenues decreased $24.4 million to $21Bamifor the three months ended September 30, 2b&éth $26.6
million for the three months ended September 3012This decrease was primarily the result of geognition of $25.1 million of license
revenue related to the license of our TransVax™gmm to Astellas in 2011 which was patrtially offbgta $0.4 million increase in contract
service revenue in 2012 related to our agreemeititsAstellas.

Research and Development Expendeesearch and development expenses decreaseaiiibl, or 33.1%, to $3.7 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2012, from $5.5 mifbothe three months ended September 30, 2011.dBuiease was primarily due to a sub-:
license payment we made to the City of Hope reladétie license of our TransVax™ program to Astetlaring the three months ended
September 30, 2011.

Manufacturing and Production Expensddanufacturing and production expenses increades fillion, or 64.4%, to $3.9 million for
the three months ended September 30, 2012, frogillion for the three months ended Septembe28Q1. This increase was primarily the
result of the recognition of capitalized costs dgrihe three months ended September 30, 2012 ddtathe shipment of clinical trial material
we manufactured for Astellas.

General and Administrative Expensé&Seneral and administrative expenses increase®®d,1or 1.7%, to $2.4 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2012, from $2.4 miftiothe three months ended September 30, 2011.ifdnsase was primarily the result of
higher employee related compensation and facilggess.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012, Compared with Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011

Total RevenuesTotal revenues decreased $12.9 million to $15lomfor the nine months ended September 30, 2&b2n $28.1
million for the nine months ended September 30,12@ur license and royalty revenue decreased bys$hdlion, which was primarily the
result of the recognition of $25.1 million of licemrevenue related to the license of our TransVaxrdfram to Astellas in 2011, which was
partially offset by $10.0 million of license reventelated to the achievement of a trial designstolee under our TransVax™ license
agreements with Astellas during 2012.

Research and Development ExpendResearch and development expenses decreasemiiidd, or 0.7%, to $13.9 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2012, from $14.0 milbothe nine months ended September 30, 2011.ddusease was primarily due to lower
overall wages and safety study costs which wergebffy the higher sub-license payment we madect€ity of Hope related to the license of
our TransVax™ program to Astellas.
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Manufacturing and Production Expensddanufacturing and production expenses increadedl fillion, or 20.3%, to $9.3 million for
the nine months ended September 30, 2012, fromriflién for the nine months ended September 30120 his increase was primarily the
result of higher wages due to an increase in haad@nd higher scientific supplies used in manuiidat).

General and Administrative ExpenséSeneral and administrative expenses increas&dm$ilion, or 10.3%, to $7.9 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2012, from $7.2 mifbothe nine months ended September 30, 2011.iftisase was primarily the result of
higher employee related compensation.

Investment and Other Income, Nétvestment and other income, net increased $dldmto $0.5 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012, from $0.1 million for the nimenths ended September 30, 2011. This increasenivaarily the result of a gain
recognized on the sale of auction rate securitiemd the nine months ended September 30, 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have financed our operatfmarily through private placements and pubfferings of equity securities, and
revenues from our operations. From our inceptioaubh September 30, 2012, we have received appabdein$213.4 million in revenues
from performing services under research and dewsdop and manufacturing contracts, from grants aom ficensing access to our propriet
technologies, and we have raised net proceedspobamately $420.0 million from the sale of equiigcurities. Cash, cash equivalents,
marketable securities, and long-term investmentduding restricted cash, totaled $92.2 milliofsaptember 30, 2012, compared with $56.4
million at December 31, 2011. The increase in @she¢ cash equivalents and marketable securitighdanine months ended September 30,
2012, was primarily the result of the receipt 08 #million in net proceeds related to the sal&@® million of our common shares in a public
offering.

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $(11.7) million and $1.0 million for the nimonths ended September 30, 2012
2011, respectively. The increase in net cash usegérating activities for the nine months endept&@aber 30, 2012, compared with the prior
year period, was primarily the result of a $15 imilldecrease in license revenue related to oursMax™ license agreements, which v
partially offset by a decrease in accounts recéévab

Net cash used in investing activities was $22.%ioniland $7.2 million for the nine months endedt8efber 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The increase in net cash used irstinge activities for the nine months ended SepterBbe2012, compared with the prior year
period, was primarily the result of an increaséhim purchases of marketable securities.

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitiess $48.7 million and $(4,000) for the nine morghded September 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively. The increase in net cash peaviny financing activities for the nine months eh&eptember 30, 2012, compared with the
prior year period, was the result of net proceedsived from the sale of our common stock durirgrtime months ended September 30, 2012

A discussion of our exposure to auction rate séesris included in Part 1, Item 3 of this Repartier the heading “Quantitative and
Quialitative Disclosures About Market Risk.”

We expect to incur substantial additional researahdevelopment expenses, manufacturing and priodustpenses, and general and
administrative expenses, including continued ingesan costs related to personnel, preclinicaldinital testing, outside services, facilities,
intellectual property and possible commercializatiOur future capital requirements will depend ammfactors, including continued scient
progress in our research and development progthmscope and results of preclinical testing amdaal trials, the time and costs involved in
obtaining regulatory approvals, the costs involiefiling, prosecuting, enforcing and defendinggratclaims, the impact of competing
technological and market developments, the costafufacturing scale-up and validation, and possiblamercialization activities and
arrangements. We may seek additional funding throegearch and development relationships with Isigitaotential corporate collaborators.
We may also seek additional funding through pubtiprivate financings. We currently have on filéeefive shelf registration statements that
allow us to raise up to an aggregate of $203.4anilirom the sale of common stock, preferred stoeht securities and/or warrants. However
additional financing may not be available on fatdeaerms or at all. If additional funding is natadlable, we anticipate that our available cast
and existing sources of funding will be adequatsatiisfy our cash needs at least through Decenlher(3.3.

19



Table of Contents

Contractual Obligations

Under our Merck, Sanofi, AnGes, Merial and Aqua lireagreements, we are required to pay up to 10%edéin initial upfront
monetary payments, and a small percentage of soyadty payments, to the Wisconsin Alumni Researatrféation and/or the University of
Michigan. Under our license agreements with Astelge are required to make certain payments t€ittyeof Hope and CytRx Corporation in
connection with the development and commercializadif our products licensed by Astellas. In additicertain technology license agreement
require us to make other payments if we or ourisebsees advance products through clinical devedopniror programs developed with the
support of U.S. government funding, the U.S. gorent may have rights to resulting products withmagment of royalties to us.

We may be required to make future payments toioensors based on the achievement of milestonderiein various in-licensing
agreements. In most cases, these milestone payarenisised on the achievement of development afategy milestones, including the
exercise of options to obtain licenses relategpxic disease targets, commencement of varioasgsof clinical trials, filing of product
license applications, approval of product licerfses the FDA or a foreign regulatory agency, angl fihrst commercial sale of a related
product. Payment for the achievement of milestamater our in-license agreements is highly speadaind subject to a number of
contingencies.

The aggregate amount of additional milestone paysiidat we could be required to pay under all afiodicense agreements in place at
September 30, 2012, is approximately $15.1 mill@frwhich approximately $7.2 million is relateddar independent programs and corporate
and government collaborations which are curremtlglinical development. These amounts assume bhanaaining milestones associated w
the milestone payments are met. In the event tivatyst license approval for any of the related poisl is obtained, we may be required to
make royalty payments in addition to these milestpayments. Although we believe that some of tHegtines contained in our in-license
agreements may be achieved, it is highly unlikest & significant number of them will be achievBdcause the milestones are highly
contingent and we have limited control over whetherdevelopment and regulatory milestones wilhbleieved, we are not in a position to
reasonably estimate how much, if any, of the padéntilestone payments will ultimately be paid vanen. Additionally, under the in-license
agreements, many of the milestone events are defaterogress in clinical trials which will takevegal years to achieve.

In addition, we have undertaken certain commitmanter license agreements with collaborators, awiéuindemnification agreements
with our officers and directors. Under the liceageeements with our collaborators, we have agmeedritinue to maintain and defend the
patent rights licensed to the collaborators anthéncase of our agreements with Astellas, haveeabto undertake certain development and
manufacturing activities. Under the indemnificatagreements with our officers and directors, weehagreed to indemnify those individuals
for any expenses and liabilities in the event tfraatened, pending or actual investigation, latysuicriminal or investigative proceeding.

We have employment agreements that contain sevemnangements with each of our three executivearff and two of our other
executives. Under the agreements with the execoffigers we are obligated to pay severance if evminate the executive officer's
employment without “cause,” or if the executiveioéf resigns for “good reason,” as defined in theeaments, within the periods set forth
therein. The severance for the executive officersists of continued base salary payments at trec¢hrrent rate, including the payment of
health insurance premiums, for the period specifiegach agreement, which ranges from 12 to 18 hspmius a payment equal to between
and one and a half times the executive’s cash biontlie previous year. In addition, the executiffecers receive accelerated vesting on all
their unvested stock awards as if they had remaénguloyed by us for between 12 and 18 months fierdate of termination. In the event
the termination occurs within 24 months of a “chagcontrol,” as defined in the agreements, tiversace for the executive officers consists
of lump sum payments equal to between 18 and 24hmai base salary at the then-current rate, thepat of health insurance premiums for
the period specified in each agreement, which raufrgen 12 to 18 months, plus a payment equal tavdxeh one and one and a half times the
executive’s cash bonus in the previous year. Intiaagl all outstanding unvested stock awards wetvimmediately. The severance for the
other executive consists of continued paymentseattten-current base compensation rate for a pefisck months. All of the agreements
specify that any earnings from employment or caimsmiduring this period will offset any salary contation payments due from us. The
maximum payments due under these employment agreemeuld have been $3.2 million if each such etieelofficer and other executive
were terminated at September 30, 2012.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK __ET RISK

We are subject to interest rate risk. Our investrpentfolio is maintained in accordance with ouréstment policy which defines
allowable investments, specifies credit qualityhderds and limits the credit exposure of any simggaer. Our investment portfolio consists of
cash equivalents, both restricted and non-restkicterketable securities and long-term investm@8rits.average maturity of our investments,
excluding our auction rate securities, is approxélyasix months. Our investments are classified\aslable-for-sale securities.
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To assess our interest rate risk, we performeasitsgty analysis projecting an ending fair valieour cash equivalents and current
marketable securities using the following assurmgti@ 12-month time horizon, a 9-month average ritatand a 150-basis-point increase in
interest rates. This pro forma fair value wouldd&een $0.3 million lower than the reported faiugaof our investments at September 30,
2012.

All of our investment securities are classifiedamailable-for-sale and therefore reported on tHerfzz sheet at market value. Our
investment securities consist of high-grade auatie securities, corporate debt securities aneémowent agency securities. As of
September 30, 2012, our long-term investments dezwa (at par value) $2.5 million auction rate siégsecured by municipal bonds. At
September 30, 2012, the auction rate security Wwkrhaintained a Standard and Poor’s credit ratif@BB. The auction rate security is a debt
instrument with a long-term maturity and with ateirest rate that is reset in short intervals thhoaigctions. The conditions in the global credit
markets have prevented some investors from liguddheir holdings of auction rate securities beeathe amount of securities submitted for
sale has exceeded the amount of purchase ordessdbrsecurities. If there is insufficient demaadthe securities at the time of an auction
auction may not be completed and the interest ratasbe reset to predetermined higher rates. Whetioas for these securities fail, the
investments may not be readily convertible to aasiil a future auction of these investments is sasful or they are redeemed or mature.

Since February 2008, there has been insufficiemiaghel at auction for our auction rate security lal8eptember 30, 2012. As a result,
this security is currently not liquid, and we coblel required to hold it until it is redeemed by ib&ier or to maturity. As of September 30,
2012, we had recognized $0.5 million of lossesteel@o the auction rate security by adjusting ésying value. The market value of the
security has partially recovered from the lows tireited the losses. As of September 30, 2012 adedtorded cumulative unrealized gain
$0.4 million. Any future decline in market value yn@sult in additional losses being recognized.

The valuation of our auction rate security is sabfe uncertainties that are difficult to predithe fair value of the security is estimated
utilizing a discounted cash flow analysis or ottygre of valuation model as of September 30, 20h2. Key drivers of the valuation model
include the expected term, collateralization unded the security investment, the creditworthinesthe counterparty, the timing of expected
future cash flows, discount rates, and the expdutéding period. This security was also compardukmpossible, to other observable market
data for securities with similar characteristics.

In the event we need to access the funds thatareunrently liquid, we will not be able to do sdthout the possible loss of principal,
until a future auction for this investment is sussfel or it is redeemed by the issuer or it matufese are unable to sell this security in the
market or it is not redeemed, then we may be reduiv hold it to maturity. We do not anticipateeed to access the funds for operational
purposes for the foreseeable future. We will cargito monitor and evaluate this investment on ayoimgy basis for impairment. Based on our
ability to access our cash and other short-terrastments, our expected operating cash flows, andtbar sources of cash, we do not
anticipate that the potential illiquidity of thisviestment will affect our ability to execute ourrant business plan.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosarControls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executiffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the desigth @peration of our disclosure controls and procesiuas such term is defined in Rule 13a-1
(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange At984, as amended, as of the end of the periodredwby this Report. Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer andngipal financial officer concluded that our disalos controls and procedures were effective
and were operating at the reasonable assurandeakewé September 30, 2012.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

Management has determined that there were no iignifchanges in our internal control over finahoégorting that occurred during the
three months ended September 30, 2012, that hatezially affected, or are reasonably likely to nmety affect our internal control over
financial reporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the risks describebbly, together with all of the other informatiortinded in this Report, and in our other
filings with the SEC, before deciding whether teast in or continue to hold our common stock. Tisksrdescribed below are all material risks
currently known, expected or reasonably foresedaplgs. If any of these risks actually occurs, lousiness, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flow could be seriously harriéds could cause the trading price of our commoglsto decline, resulting in a loss of all
part of your investment.

The risk factors set forth below with an asterigknext to the title are new risk factors or rigicfors containing changes, including any
material changes, from the risk factors previouk$glosed in Item 1A of our Annual Report on For@KL for the year ended December 31,
2011, as filed with the SEC.

(*)None of our independently devel oped product candidates has been approved for sale, and we have a limited number of independently
developed product candidatesin clinical trials. If we do not develop commercially successful products, we may be forced to curtail or cease
operations.

All of our independently developed product candidadre either in research or development. We namtuct a substantial amount of
additional research and development before any &.freign regulatory authority will approve anfyaur product candidates. Limited data
exist regarding the efficacy of DNA vaccines orrtipeutics compared with conventional vaccines eragpeutics. Results of our research and
development activities may indicate that our pradandidates are unsafe or ineffective. In thigcesgulatory authorities will not approve
them.

For example, our independently developed produndiciates currently in clinical development incluidvectin © , for which we
announced the completion of enroliment of a Phad@al trial in 2010. We have an allowed Invgstional New Drug Application for
CyMVectin™ and have begun preclinical work on a H&Vaccine. We may not meet the primary endpoithefAllovectin® trial for which a
Special Protocol Assessment agreement is in plébete FDA. We may not conduct Phase 1 CyMVectia™HSV-2 vaccine trials, and the
future trials, if any, may not demonstrate sufiitiefficacy to support further product development.

Additionally, we are in early stages of developmwith other product candidates. These product chatds will require significant costs
to advance through the development stages. If ptaduct candidates are advanced through clini@étrthe results of such trials may not
support approval by the FDA or comparable foreigareies. Even if approved, our products may natdmemercially successful, particularly
if they do not gain market acceptance among physscipatients, healthcare payers and relevant aleimmunities. If we fail to develop and
commercialize our products, we may be forced tbadlusr cease operations.

We are dependent on our license agreements with Astellasto further develop and commercialize TransVax ™. The failure to maintain
these agreements, or the failure of Astellasto perform its obligations under these agreements, could negatively impact our business.

Pursuant to the terms of our license agreementsAwgtellas, we granted to Astellas exclusive worttwrights to develop and
commercialize certain products, including TransVakiit excluding CyMVectin™, for the control and peetion of CMV infection in
immunocompromised patients, including transplaaipients and transplant donors, and pursuant teettmes of our supply and services
agreement with Astellas, we are obligated to perfoertain development activities and supply Assellgth its product requirements for
development and initial commercialization acti\gti€onsequently, our ability to generate any reesritom TransVax™ depends on Astellas’
ability to develop, obtain regulatory approvals &md successfully commercialize TransVax™. We Hiawiged control over the amount and
timing of resources that Astellas will dedicatdtiese efforts.

We are subject to a number of other risks assatiaith our dependence on our license agreemenitsAsgitellas, including:

» Astellas may not comply with applicable regulatgnidelines with respect to developing or commeiziad) TransVax™, which
could adversely impact sales or future developroéfitansVax™,
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* We and Astellas could disagree as to future dewedoy plans and Astellas may delay, fail to commemcgtop future clinical trials
or other developmen

* There may be disputes between us and Astellasidimg disagreements regarding the license agresptaat may result in (1) the
delay of or failure to achieve developmental, raguily and commercial objectives that would resulnilestone or royalty
payments, (2) the delay or termination of any feitdevelopment or commercialization of TransVax™t/an(3) costly litigation or
arbitration that diverts our managen’s attention and resource

» Astellas may not provide us with timely and acceiiatormation regarding development, sales and ateugs activities or supply
forecasts, which could adversely impact our abtlitgomply with our service and supply obligatisa#stellas and manage our
own inventory of TransVax™, as well as our abititygenerate accurate financial foreca

* Business combinations or significant changes irelest’ business strategy may adversely affect festeability or willingness to
perform its obligations under our license agreesie

» Astellas may not properly defend our intellectualgerty rights, or may use our proprietary inforimatin such a way as to invite
litigation that could jeopardize or invalidate antellectual property rights or expose us to patéitigation;

e The royalties we are eligible to receive from Alstelmay be reduced based upon Astellas’ and olityai maintain or defend our
intellectual property rights and the presence ofegie competitors

« Limitations on our or an acquiror’s ability to m&m or pursue development or commercializatioprotiucts that are competitive
with TransVax™ could deter a potential acquisitidrus that our stockholders may otherwise viewexseficial; anc

» If Astellas is unsuccessful in developing, obtagniegulatory approvals for or commercializing Thdas™, we may not receive
any additional milestone or royalty payments urtterlicense agreements and our business prospetfsmancial results may be
materially harmed

The license agreements and supply and servicesragré are subject to early termination, includimgptigh Astellas’ right to terminate
upon advance notice to us if Astellas reasonaligrdenes that further development and/or commaeeiibn will not be beneficial for
Astellas. If the agreements are terminated eamymay not be able to find another collaboratottiercommercialization and further
development of TransVax™ on acceptable terms, all,aind we may be unable to pursue continuedldpseent or commercialization of
TransVax™ on our own.

Our revenues partially depend on the development and commercialization of productsin collaboration with others to whom we have
licensed our technologies. If our other collaborators or licensees do not successfully develop and commercialize products covered by these
arrangements, or if we are unableto find collaborators or licenseesin the future, we may not be able to derive revenues from these
arrangements, we may lose opportunities to validate our DNA delivery technologies, or we may be forced to curtail our development and
commercialization effortsin these areas.

In addition to our license agreements with AsteNes have licensed, and may continue to licenseteminologies to corporate
collaborators and licensees for the research, dpaent and commercialization of specified prodactdidates. Our revenues partially depenc
upon the ability of these collaborators and licess® successfully develop and commercialize prisdtmvered by these arrangements. In
addition, our licensees Astellas and AnGes havduymibcandidates in advanced stage of clinical agreent, for which we believe regulatory
approval would provide important further validatiohour DNA delivery technologies. The developmand commercialization efforts of our
collaborators and licensees are subject to the siakweand uncertainties described above with @speour independently developed product
candidates.

Some collaborators or licensees may not succeigtinproduct development efforts. It is possilblattAnGes or any of our other
collaborators or licensees may be unable to obé&gjolatory approval of product candidates usingtechnologies or successfully market and
commercialize any such products for which regulatpproval is obtained. In September 2010, AnGesanced that after a series of
extensive consultations with the Japanese Pharriealsuand Medical Devices Agency, it would be widwing its New Drug Application, or
NDA, in Japan. Also in September 2010, anotherafraur licensees, Sanofi announced that NV1FGRrajiogenic growth factor therapeu
for which Sanofi had
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licensed our DNA delivery technology, did not méet primary endpoint in a global Phase 3 trial.@ditpllaborators or licensees may not
devote sufficient time or resources to the prograocvered by these arrangements, and we may haitedior no control over the time or
resources allocated by these collaborators ordiees to these programs. The occurrence of anysé thvents may cause us to derive little or
no revenue from these arrangements, lose oppadsinit validate our DNA delivery technologies, orde us to curtail or cease our
development and commercialization efforts in thesas.

Our collaborators and licensees may breach or tet@itheir agreements with us, including somertieat terminate their agreements
without cause at any time subject to certain paigtten notice requirements, and we may be unssfgeim entering into and maintaining ott
collaborative arrangements for the developmentcamdmercialization of products using our technolegléwe are unable to maintain existing
collaboration arrangements or enter into new oosability to generate licensing, milestone oraiby revenues would be materially impaired.

Some of our independent product candidates and some of those under devel opment by our sublicensees incor porate technologies we
have licensed from others. | f we are unable to retain rightsto use these technologies, we or our sublicensees may not be able to market
products incorporating these technologies on a commercially feasible basis, if at all.

We have licensed certain technologies from corparatlaborators and research institutions, andicaied certain of such technologies
to others, for use in the research, developmentaminercialization of product candidates. Our poydievelopment efforts and those of our
sublicensees partially depend upon continued adogbgse technologies. For example, we or ounfioes may breach or terminate our
agreements, or disagree on interpretations of tagesements, which could prevent continued accegse technologies. If we were unabl
resolve such matters on satisfactory terms, olt,at@ or our sublicensees may be unable to devahmbcommercialize our products, and we
may be forced to curtail or cease operations.

(*)We have a history of net losses. We expect to continue to incur net losses and we may not achieve or maintain profitability.

To date, we have not sold, or received approvaétlh any pharmaceutical products. We do not exigesell any pharmaceutical products
for at least the next several years. Our net losses approximately $7.3 million, $30.4 million a®#8.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivelypfAeptember 30, 2012, we had incurred cumulatdtdasses totaling approximately
$340.4 million. Moreover, we expect that our nesskes will continue and may increase for the forsieefuture. We may not be able to ach
projected results if we generate lower revenuasagive lower investment income than expected,@meur greater expenses than expected,
or all of the above. We may never generate suffigigoduct revenue to become profitable. We alg@eixto have quarter-to-quarter
fluctuations in revenues, expenses, and losseg sbmhich could be significant.

(*)We may need additional capital in the future. If additional capital is not available, we may haveto curtail or cease operations.

We may need to raise more money to continue trearek and development necessary to bring our ptedoienarket and to establish
marketing and additional manufacturing capabilitie may seek additional funds through public arebpe stock offerings, government
contracts and grants, arrangements with corpordlgborators, borrowings under lease lines of ¢redother sources. We currently have on
file shelf registration statements that allow usaise up to an aggregate of $203.4 million fromghle of common stock, preferred stock, deb
securities and/or warrants. However, we may nahie to raise additional funds on favorable teronst all. Conditions in the credit markets
and the financial services industry may make ecauity debt financing more difficult to obtain, andymegatively impact our ability to
complete financing transactions. To the extentweataise additional funds by issuing equity sea@sj our stockholders may experience
significant dilution. Any debt financing, if avable, may involve restrictive covenants, such agtéitions on our ability to incur additional
indebtedness and other operating restrictionsciinall adversely impact our ability to conduct ousiness.

If we are unable to obtain additional funds, we rhaye to scale back our development of new produetisice our workforce or license
to others products or technologies that we otherwisuld seek to commercialize ourselves. The amolumioney we may need would depend
on many factors, including:

. The progress of our research and development prosy
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. The scope and results of our preclinical studiesdaimical trials; anc

. The time and costs involved in: obtaining necessagylatory approvals; filing, prosecuting and eaiiog patent claims;
scaling up our manufacturing capabilities; anddbemercial arrangements we may estab

The regulatory approval processis expensive, time consuming and uncertain, which may prevent us and our collaborators and
licensees from obtaining required approvals for the commercialization of our products.

Our product candidates under development and thfoser collaborators and licensees, including Aatglare subject to extensive and
rigorous regulations by numerous governmental aiiteg in the United States and other countrie® fdgulatory approval process takes man
years and will require us to expend substantiauees. For example, the FDA has provided onlytéchguidelines concerning the size i
scope of clinical trials required for gene-basestdabeutic and vaccine products.

Therefore, U.S. or foreign regulations could preévardelay regulatory approval of our productsinit our and our collaborators and
licensees’ ability to develop and commercialize ptaducts. Delays could:

. Impose costly procedures on our activities andetadur collaborators and license

. Delay or prevent our receipt of developmental anowrcial milestones from our collaborators andrisees
. Diminish any competitive advantages that we orgroducts attain; c

. Otherwise negatively affect our results of operagiand cash flow:

We have no experience in filing a Biologics LiceAgmlication, or BLA, or NDA, with the FDA. BecaugseBLA or NDA must be
submitted to and approved by the FDA before anyunfproduct candidates may be commercialized,ank bf experience may impede our
ability to obtain FDA approval in a timely mann#rat all, which in turn would delay or preventisem commercializing those
products. Similarly, our lack of experience witlspect to obtaining regulatory approvals in coustdther than the United States may impede
our ability to commercialize our products in thaseintries.

We believe that the FDA and comparable foreign laguy bodies will regulate separately each prodwocitaining a particular gene
depending on its intended use. Presently, to cowiaize any product we and our collaborators acensees must file a regulatory application
for each proposed use. We and our collaboratordieemsees must conduct clinical studies to denmatesthe safety and efficacy of the proc
necessary to obtain FDA or foreign regulatory atith@pproval. The results obtained so far in dinical trials and those of our collaborators
and licensees may not be replicated in ongoingitoiré trials, or the results may be subject to arynterpretation on whether they are
sufficient to support approval for commercializatidhis may prevent any of our product candidates freceiving approval for commercial
sale.

We use recombinant DNA molecules in our productizgdates, and therefore we and our collaboratordiaedsees also must comply
with guidelines instituted by the NIH and its O#iof Biotechnology Activities. The NIH could restror delay the development of our product
candidates.

If any of our product candidates receive regulatgpproval, the FDA or other foreign regulatory agies may still impose significant
restrictions on the indicated uses or marketinguwfproduct candidates or impose ongoing requirgésen potentially costly post-approval
studies. In addition, regulatory agencies subjgmoauct, its manufacturer and the manufacturedifies to continual review and periodic
inspections. If a regulatory agency discovers mneslly unknown problems with a product or a prodi&ss, including adverse events of
unanticipated severity or frequency, or problenthhe facility where the product is manufactur@degulatory agency may impose
restrictions on that product or product class,amllaborators and licensees or us, including réagiwithdrawal of a product from the market.
Our product candidates will also be subject to amy&DA and other foreign regulatory agency requieats for the labeling, packaging,
storage, advertising, promotion, record-keeping stamission of safety and other post-market infdioneon the product. If we or our
collaborators and licensees fail to maintain reguacompliance after receiving marketing approvad,or our collaborators and licensees may
be unable to market our products and our businassl cuffer.
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Adverse events or the perception of adverse eventsin the field of gene therapy, or with respect to our product candidates, may
negatively impact regulatory approval or public perception of our products.

The commercial success of some of our product datek will depend in part on public acceptancéefuse of gene therapy for
preventing or treating human diseases. Seriousselevents, including patient deaths, have occunretinical trials utilizing viral delivery
systems to deliver therapeutic genes to the p&itargeted cells. Although none of our currentdarcts or studies utilize viral delivery
systems, these adverse events, as well as anyaatherse events in the field of gene therapy that atcur in the future, may negatively
influence public perception of gene therapy in gahéf public perception is influenced by clainm&t gene therapy is unsafe, our product
candidates may not be accepted by the generalcputbthe medical community.

Future adverse events in gene therapy or the Ihintdogy industry could also result in greater goveental regulation, stricter labeling
requirements and potential regulatory delays inéiséng or approval of our potential products. Amgreased scrutiny could delay or increase
the costs of our product development efforts aricdil trials. In addition, any adverse events thay occur in our clinical trials and any
resulting publicity may cause regulatory delaystherwise affect our product development effortslonical trials.

Some of our potential products may be administevgzhtients who are suffering from, or are vulnérdb, serious diseases or other
conditions which can themselves be life-threateraind often result in the death of the patient.ds@mple, one patient in our Allovectn
Phase 2 trial conducted in 2000, died from progvestisease more than two months after receivirigu&ttin® and other cancer therapies.
death was originally reported as unrelated to thatinent. Following an autopsy, the death was ssiflad as “probably related” to the
treatment because the possibility could not bedrol&. We do not believe Allovectih was a signifitéactor in the patient’s death. Patient
deaths in our clinical trials, even if caused bg-pkisting diseases or conditions, could negatigéfigct the perception of our product
candidates. In addition, in our TransVax™ Phagga®, tve administered TransVax™ to patients whoenarrisk of CMV reactivation.
Although we do not believe our vaccine candidatedd:cause the diseases they are designed to pagfeinst, a temporal relationship betw
vaccination and disease onset could be perceivedusal. Some of our products are designed to Etismimmune responses, and those
responses, if particularly strong or uncontrollealld result in local or systemic adverse eventduding latent adverse events.

(*)Our patents and proprietary rights may not provide us with any benefit and the patents of others may prevent us from
commercializing our products.

As of September 30, 2012, we were the assignee-assignee of 80 issued U.S. and foreign patengsmaintain our issued patents by
paying maintenance fees to the patent office ith €acintry when due. Where appropriate, we partieipalegal proceedings to vigorously
defend against the revocation or withdrawal of matents. The scope and nature of these proceegiémgsally differ depending on the country
in which they are initiated. If we are not succabksf defending our patents, we may lose all ot papur proprietary rights related to those
patents in these geographic regions.

As of September 30, 2012, we were also prosecbingending patent applications in the United Statebkin foreign countries that coy
various aspects of our proprietary technologiesjmauding patent applications for which we areceassignee and that are being prosecute
our partners.

We may not receive any patents from our currergrgatpplications. Issued patents provide exclysfoit only a limited time period,
after which they no longer serve to protect praprigtechnologies or to provide any commercial adage. Moreover, if patents are issued to
us, governmental authorities may not allow clainficient to protect our technologies and produ€tthers may also challenge or seek to
circumvent or invalidate our patents. In that eyér rights granted under our patents may be ozate to protect our proprietary technolog
or to provide any commercial advantage.

In addition, the Leahy-Smith America Invents AatAdA, was signed into law on September 16, 2014 significantly changed certain
aspects of the United States patent laws, soméniwhvare in effect on September 16, 2012 and othetswill become effective March 16,
2013. These changes include, but are not limiteduthorizing fee setting authority to the Unitadt8s Patent Office, transitioning the United
States to a first-inventor-to file patent systempanding the scope of prior art that may be utiliagainst a pending patent application, and
adding post-patent grant proceedings before thenPéxffice in which third parties may challenge ttadidity of the granted
patent. Accordingly, it is not clear, what, if amypact the AIA will have on the cost of prosecgtiour patent applications, our ability to obtain
patents based on our patent applications, andhilitydo enforce or defend our issued or grantedtéd States patents. An inability to obtain,
enforce, and defend patents covering our propyigtaahnologies would materially and adversely dffao business prospects and financial
condition.
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Some components of our gene-based product cangdidegeor may become, patented by others. As #,regumay be required to obtain
licenses to conduct research, to manufacture, oraidket such products. Licenses may not be availablcommercially reasonable terms, or a
all, which may impede our ability to commercialer products.

The legal proceedingsto obtain and defend patents, and litigation of third-party claims of intellectual property infringement, could
require usto spend money and could impair our operations.

Our and our collaborators’, including Astellas’csass will depend in part on our, or our collabansit ability to obtain patent protection
for our products and processes, both in the UrStaties and in other countries. The patent positibiéotechnology and pharmaceutical
companies, however, can be highly uncertain andhvevcomplex legal and factual questions. Therefibiie difficult to predict the breadth of
claims allowed in the biotechnology and pharmacalfields.

We also rely on confidentiality agreements with ocarporate collaborators, employees, consultardscartain contractors to protect our
proprietary technologies. However, these agreenmaisbe breached and we may not have adequate iemiedsuch breaches. In addition,
our trade secrets may otherwise become known epiendently discovered by our competitors.

Protecting intellectual property rights can be vexpensive. Litigation may be necessary to enfpatents issued to us or to determine
the scope and validity of third-party proprietaights. If we or, as applicable, our commercialiaatpartners, including Astellas pursuant to its
first right to enforce patents licensed to it under license agreements, choose to go to coutbpsomeone else from using our inventions,
that individual or company has the right to askdbert to rule that the underlying patents are lidvand/or should not be enforced against tha
third party. Moreover, if a competitor were to fidgpatent application claiming technology also imted by us or our collaborators or licensees
we would have to participate in an interferencecpealing before the U.S. Patent and Trademark Officketermine the priority of the
invention. We or our collaborators or licensees t@ylrawn into interferences with third partiesray have to provoke interferences ourse
to unblock third-party patent rights to allow usomr collaborators or licensees to commercializmlpcts based on our technologies. Litigation
could result in substantial costs and the diversiomanagement’s efforts regardless of the resiiltse litigation. An unfavorable result in
litigation could subject us to significant liabiéis to third parties, require disputed rights tdibensed or require us to cease using some
technologies.

Our products and processes may infringe, or beddomnfringe, patents not owned or controlled By Ratents held by others may
require us to alter our products or processesjrohitenses, or stop activities. If relevant claiofghird-party patents are upheld as valid and
enforceable, we or our collaborators or licenseesdche prevented from practicing the subject matti@med in the patents, or may be requ
to obtain licenses or redesign our products orgsses to avoid infringement. In addition, we or@altaborators or licensees could be require
to pay money damages. A number of genetic sequemgasteins encoded by genetic sequences thatenieaestigating are, or may become,
patented by others. As a result, we or our collatoos or licensees may have to obtain licensesstouse or market these products. Our
business will suffer if we or our collaboratorslicensees are not able to obtain licenses at ahderms commercially reasonable to us or t
and we or they are not able to redesign our pradacprocesses to avoid infringement.

We have incurred costs in several legal proceedimgsving our intellectual property rights in Eyg®, Japan and Canada. We may
continue to incur costs to defend and prosecutenpaeind patent applications in these and othé@neg

Competition and technological change may make our product candidates and technologies less attractive or obsolete.

We compete with companies, including major pharratical and biotechnology firms that are pursuingeotforms of treatment or
prevention for diseases that we target. We alsoerpgrience competition from companies that hageiiaed or may acquire technologies
from universities and other research institutigksthese companies develop their technologies, ey develop proprietary positions which
may prevent us from successfully commercializingdpicts.
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Some of our competitors are established comparitesgreater financial and other resources than axehOther companies may succ
in developing products and obtaining regulatoryrapal from the FDA or comparable foreign agencastdr than we do, or in developing
products that are more effective than ours. Rebesrd development by others may seek to rendetechinologies or products obsolete or
noncompetitive or result in treatments or curessiop to any therapeutics developed by us.

The NIH and the FDA jointly developed the Genetiod¥fication Clinical Research Information SystemGeMCRIS, an Internet-based
database of human gene transfer trials. GeMCRIBlenindividuals to easily view information on pewtar characteristics of clinical gene
transfer trials. Although GeMCRIS includes spesidurity features designed to protect patient pyivaand confidential commercial
information, these security features may be inadty designed or enforced, potentially resultimglisclosure of confidential commercial
information. In addition, the NIH, in collaboratiovith the FDA, has developed an Internet site, i€éifTrials.gov, which provides public
access to information on clinical trials and thresults for a wide range of diseases and conditieuisire disclosures of such confidential
commercial information may result in loss of adeay# of competitive secrets.

If we lose our key personnel or are unable to attract and retain additional personnel, we may not be able to achieve our business
objectives.

We are highly dependent on our principal scientifi@nufacturing, clinical, regulatory and managenpemsonnel, including Vijay B.
Samant, our President and Chief Executive Offitle loss of the services of these individuals mgigificantly delay or prevent the
achievement of our objectives. We do not maint&iy“person” life insurance on any of our personwa. depend on our continued ability to
attract, retain and motivate highly qualified mamagnt and scientific personnel. We face competftomualified individuals from other
companies, academic institutions, government estiaind other organizations in attracting and rigtgipersonnel. To pursue our product
development plans, we may need to hire additiormalagement personnel and additional scientific pemsioto perform research and
development, as well as additional personnel wiftedtise in clinical trials, government regulat@md manufacturing. However, due to the
reasons noted above, we may not be successfuirig lur retaining qualified personnel and therefaeemay not be able to achieve our
business objectives.

We have limited experience in manufacturing our product candidatesin commercial quantities. We may not be able to comply with
applicable manufacturing regulations or produce sufficient product for contract or commercial purposes.

The commercial manufacturing of vaccines and adbi@bgical products is a time-consuming and compmcess, which must be
performed in compliance with the FDA's current Gdddnufacturing Practices, or cGMP, regulations. M&y not be able to comply with the
cGMP regulations, and our manufacturing process Ineagubject to delays, disruptions or quality colrproblems. In addition, we may neec
complete the installation and validation of additiblarge-scale fermentation and related purifaragquipment to produce the quantities of
product expected to be required for commercial pses. We have limited experience in manufacturinis scale. Noncompliance with the
cGMP regulations, the inability to complete thetétiation or validation of additional large-scalgugment, or other problems with our
manufacturing process may limit or delay the dewelent or commercialization of our product candidasad cause us to breach our contract
manufacturing service arrangements or our obligatimder our agreements with collaborators, inagidiur obligations under our supply and
services agreement with Astellas.

We currently depend on third parties to conduct our clinical trials and may initially depend on third parties to manufacture our product
candidates commercially.

We rely on third parties, including clinical resgiaorganizations, or CROs, medical institutions eowttract laboratories, to perform
critical services for us in connection with oumdtial trials. These third parties are responsibtariany aspects of the trials, including finding
and enrolling subjects for testing and administgthre trials. Although we rely on these third pestto conduct our clinical trials, we are
responsible for ensuring that each of our clintdals is conducted in accordance with its protaowd applicable regulations, including good
clinical practices established by the FDA and fgmaiegulatory authorities, which govern the condminitoring, recording and reporting the
results of clinical trials to ensure that the data results are scientifically credible and acayrand that trial subjects are adequately informed
of the potential risks associated with participatim clinical trials. Our reliance on third partiéses not relieve us of the responsibility to ea
these requirements are met. These third partiesnoiagomply with all regulatory and contractualuggments or may not otherwise perform
their services in a timely or acceptable manned,\va@ may need to enter into new arrangements Wehnative third parties and our clinical
trials may be extended, delayed or terminateddtiten, if such third parties fail to perform th@bligations in compliance with our clinical
trial protocols or applicable good clinical praetieegulations, our clinical trials may not meetulagpry requirements or may need to be
repeated, and we may not be able to obtain regylagproval for or commercialize the product caatidbeing tested in such trials. These
also apply to the development activities of outatmbrators and licensees, and we do not controtolleborators’ and licensees’ research and
development, clinical trials or regulatory actiegi

We may also initially depend on collaborators, hisees or other third parties to manufacture ouwdyobcandidates in commercial
guantities. There are a limited number of thirdtiparthat could manufacture our product candiddésmay be unable to enter into any
arrangement for the commercial manufacture of codgct candidates, and any arrangement we secyréobaneet our requirements for
manufacturing quality or quantity. Our dependentéhird parties for the commercial manufacture wf product candidates may also reduce
our profit margins and our ability to develop aredicer products in a timely manner.
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We have no marketing or sales experience, and if we are unable to develop our own sales and marketing capability, we may not be
successful in commercializing our products.

Our current strategy is to market our proprietaigdpicts directly in the United States, but we cottyedo not possess pharmaceutical
marketing or sales capabilities. To market andasllproprietary products, we will need to devedogales force and a marketing group with
relevant pharmaceutical industry experience, orargglpropriate arrangements with strategic partoemsarket and sell these products.
Developing a marketing and sales force is experainktime-consuming and could delay any produetdhulf we are unable to successfully
employ qualified marketing and sales personnelewetbp other sales and marketing capabilities, &g not be able to generate sufficient
product revenue to become profitable.

Healthcare reform and restrictions on reimbursement may limit our returns on potential products.

Our ability to earn sufficient returns on our protiuwill depend in part on how much, if any, reimgament for our products and related
treatments will be available from:

. Government health administration authoriti

. Government agencies procuring biodefense prodoctsifitary or public use, including some for whisle may become a
sole-source vendol

. Private health coverage insure
. Managed care organizations; ¢
. Other organization

If we fail to obtain appropriate reimbursement, eeelld be prevented from successfully commercialznar potential products. There i
ongoing efforts by governmental and third-partygrayto contain or reduce the costs of healthcacaigh various reform measures. In the
United States, the Federal government passed cbensizve healthcare reform legislation in 2010. Mahthe details regarding the
implementation of this legislation are yet to béedmined and we currently cannot predict whethdoavhat extent such implementation or
adoption of reforms may impair our business.

Additionally, third-party payers are increasinglyatlenging the price of medical products and sewidf purchasers or users of our
products are not able to obtain adequate reimbuasefar the cost of using our products, they magdo or reduce their use. Significant
uncertainty exists as to the reimbursement stdtnswly approved healthcare products, and whettleqaate third-party coverage will be
available.

(*)We use hazardous materialsin our business. Any claimsrelating to improper handling, storage or disposal of these materials could
be time consuming and costly.

Our research and development processes involveotiteolled storage, use and disposal of hazardaisrials and biological materials.
Our hazardous materials include certain compregases, flammable liquids, acids and bases, and tatkie compounds. We are subject to
federal, state and local regulations governingutes manufacture, storage, handling and disposabtérials and waste products. Although we
believe that our safety procedures for handlingdisgdosing of these hazardous materials comply thighstandards prescribed by law and
regulation, the risk of accidental contaminationnjury from hazardous materials cannot be complatiéminated. In the event of an accident,
we could be held liable for any damages that re¥uét could incur significant costs to comply witlrent or future environmental laws and
regulations

We may have significant product liability exposure.

We face an inherent business risk of exposureddymt liability and other claims in the event tbat technologies or products are alle
to have caused harm. We also have potential liglidr products manufactured by us on a contrasisbfr third parties. Although we currer
maintain product liability insurance in the amooh$10 million in the aggregate plus additional emge specific to the foreign countries
where our clinical trials are being conducted, thigirance coverage may not be sufficient, and &g mot be able to obtain sufficient cover.
in the future at a reasonable cost. Our inabiitphtain product liability insurance at an accefgalost or to otherwise protect against potentia
product liability claims could prevent or inhibite commercialization of any products developed$grour collaborators, or our ability to
manufacture products for third parties. If we aredsfor any injury caused by our technologies odpcts, or by third-party products that we
manufacture, our liability could exceed our insw@ooverage and total assets.
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(*)Negative conditionsin the global credit markets may impair the liquidity of a portion of our investment portfolio.

Our investment securities consist of auction rataisties, corporate debt securities and governmgency securities. As of
September 30, 2012, our long-term investments dezdwa (at par value) $2.5 million auction rate séggecured by municipal bonds. At
September 30, 2012, the auction rate security Werhaintained a Standard and Poor’s credit ratif§RBB. Our auction rate security is a debt
instrument with a long-term maturity and with ateiest rate that is reset in short intervals thhoaigctions. The conditions in the global credit
markets have prevented some investors from ligumdabeir holdings of auction rate securities beeathe amount of securities submitted for
sale has exceeded the amount of purchase ordessdbrsecurities. If there is insufficient demaodthe securities at the time of an auction
auction may not be completed and the interest ratgsbe reset to predetermined higher rates. Whetioas for these securities fail, the
investments may not be readily convertible to aasfil a future auction of these investments is egsful or they are redeemed or mature.

Since February 2008, there has been insufficiemizgel at auction for our auction rate security lel8eptember 30, 2012. As a result,
this security is currently not liquid, and we coblel required to hold it until it is redeemed by ib&ier or to maturity. As of September 30,
2012, we had recognized $0.5 million of lossesteel#o the auction rate security by adjusting #3ying value. The market value of the
security has partially recovered from the lows tiretited the losses. As of September 30, 2012 adedtorded cumulative unrealized gain
$0.4 million. Any future decline in market value yn@sult in additional losses being recognized.

In the event we need to access the funds thahame illiquid state, we will not be able to do sithwut the possible loss of principal, until
a future auction for this investment is successftiit is redeemed by the issuer or it matures.dfare unable to sell this security in the market
or it is not redeemed, then we may be requiredtd i to maturity.

(*)Our stock price could continue to be highly volatile and you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the price you pay for
them.

The market price of our common stock, like thatainy other life sciences companies, has been diketlig to continue to be highly
volatile. From January 1, 2009, to September 3@220ur stock price has ranged from $1.20 to $5I5&.following factors, among others,
could have a significant impact on the market poteur common stock:

. The results of our preclinical studies and clinicils or announcements regarding our plans fluréustudies or trials, or
those of our collaborators, licensees or compsti

. Evidence or lack of evidence of the safety or afficof our potential products or those of our dmiators, licensees or
competitors

. The success of our collaborators and licenseesidimg Astellas, in the development or commercaian of our product
candidates

. The announcement by us or our collaborators, lees®r competitors of technological innovationa@w products

. Developments concerning our patent or other prégayeights or those of our collaborators, licersseecompetitors,
including litigation and challenges to our propaigtrights;

. Other developments with our collaborators or lie&ss including our entry into new collaborativdicensing arrangement
. Geopolitical developments, natural or r-made disease threats, or other events beyond atnot¢

. U.S. and foreign governmental regulatory actic

. Changes or announcements in reimbursement pol

. Perioc-to-period fluctuations in our operating resu

. Market conditions for life science stocks in getre

. Changes in the collective short interest in ouclst

. Changes in estimates of our performance by seesid@tnalysts; an
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. Our cash balances, need for additional capital cacéss to capite
We are at risk of securities class action litigation due to our expected stock price volatility.

In the past, stockholders have brought securiteess@ction litigation against a company followandecline in the market price of its
securities. This risk is especially acute for usause life science companies have experiencecdegibain average stock price volatility in
recent years and, as a result, have been subjemt tverage, a greater number of securities aletgan claims than companies in other
industries. To date, we have not been subjectssdction litigation. However, we may in the fatbe the target of this litigation. Securities
litigation could result in substantial costs andedi our management’s attention and resources¢amid seriously harm our business.

Anti-takeover provisionsin our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of us, which may be beneficial
to our stockholders, more difficult and may prevent attempts by our stockholdersto replace or remove our current management.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws incluatgi-takeover provisions, such as a classifieddoédirectors, a prohibition on
stockholder actions by written consent, the authaf our board of directors to issue preferreatktwithout stockholder approval, and
supermajority voting requirements for specifiedaw. In addition, because we are incorporateddta®are, we are governed by the
provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware GenembGration Law, which generally prohibits stockhersl owning in excess of 15% of our
outstanding voting stock from merging or combinwith us for a period of three years. These prowisimay delay or prevent an acquisitior
us, even if the acquisition may be considered beiaéby some stockholders. In addition, they magcdurage or prevent any attempts by our
stockholders to replace or remove our current mamagt by making it more difficult for stockholdeosreplace members of our board of
directors, which is responsible for appointing tembers of our management.

(*)Theissuance of preferred stock could adversely affect our common stockholders.

We currently have on file shelf registration sta¢es that allow us to raise up to an aggregat@083 million from the sale of common
stock, preferred stock, debt securities and/or avdsrand our restated certificate of incorporagiothorizes us to issue up to 5,000,000 shai
preferred stock. The issuance of preferred stockdcadversely affect the voting power of holder®of common stock, and reduce the
likelihood that our common stockholders will reaividend payments and payments upon liquidafitve. issuance of preferred stock could
also decrease the market price of our common stodkave terms and conditions that could discoueatgkeover or other transaction that
might involve a premium price for our shares ot thar stockholders might believe to be in theirtbeterests.

ITEM5. OTHER INFORMATION

On November 7, 2012, we entered into an At-The-MbaHEquity Offering Sales Agreement with Stifel, blmus & Company,
Incorporated, or Stifel, under which we may issné sell up to $50,000,000 of shares of our comntacksrom time to time. Under the Sales
Agreement, we will set the parameters for the shkhares, including the number of shares to heestsand any minimum price below which
sales may not be made. Subject to the terms arditmos of the Sales Agreement, shares may betboddigh Stifel acting as sales agent or
directly to Stifel acting as principal, by meansooflinary brokers’ transactions on the NASDAQ GldWarket, in privately negotiated
transactions or otherwise at market prices prengidit the time of sale, at prices related to plegamarket prices or at negotiated prices. Any
sales other than by methods deemed to be an “atdhleet” offering as defined in Rule 415 promulgbteder the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Act, will require ouoipconsent. Stifel is obligated to use commergiediasonable efforts in conducting sales
activities. The Sales Agreement may be terminayedsbupon prior notice to Stifel or by Stifel upprior notice to us, or at any time under
certain circumstances, including but not limitedhe occurrence of a material adverse change ic@upany.

The Sales Agreement provides that Stifel will batkenl to compensation for its services in an am@ir2.5% of the gross proceeds from
the sale of shares sold through Stifel under thesS&greement. We have no obligation to sell arsyeshunder the Sales Agreement, and may
at any time suspend offers under the Sales AgreeMénhave agreed in the Sales Agreement to prarakEmnification and contribution to
Stifel against certain liabilities, including lidities under the Securities Act, and to reimburieSor certain legal expenses incurred in
connection with the Sales Agreement.

The legal opinion of Cooley LLP relating to the sdsof common stock being offered pursuant to tilesSAgreement is filed as Exhibit
5.1 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

3.1(3)(1) Restated Certificate of Incorporatic
3.2(ii)(2 Amended and Restated Bylav

4

3.3(1)(2) Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificaténarporation

4.1(1) Specimen Common Stock Certifica
5.1 Opinion of Cooley LLP
10.1 At-The-Market Equity Offering Sales Agreement dalem/ember 7, 2012 between the Company and Stifeblaus &
Company, Incorporate
31.1 Certification of Vijay B. Samant, Chief ExecutivdfiOer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Jill M. Broadfoot, Chief Financi&lfficer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of Vijay B. Samant, Chief ExecutivdfiOer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification of Jill M. Broadfoot, Chief Financi&lfficer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS* XBRL Instance Documen
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documg
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntn
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documk
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doeni

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas

(1) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $hene number filed with the Company’s RegistraBtatement on Form S-3 (No. 35812)
filed on August 15, 199¢

(2) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of shene number filed with the Company’s Quarterly é&tepn Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 201

*  Furnished herewith and n“filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exglkaict of 1934, as amende
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdRbport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Vical Incorporatec

Date: November 7, 2012 By: /s/JILL M. BROADFOOT
Jill M. Broadfoot
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer &8etretary (on
behalf of the registrant and as the registrantisdfral Financial
and Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 5.1

Sean M. Clayton
T: +1 858 550 6034
sclayton@cooley.com

November 7, 201

Vical Incorporated
10390 Pacific Center Court
San Diego, CA 92121

Ladies and Gentlemen:

You have requested our opinion with respect toagernatters in connection with the offering by Mitriecorporated, a Delaware corporation
(the “Company "), of the lesser of (i) $50,000,000 of sharesigr30,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stpakvalue $0.01 (the “
Shares™”), pursuant to a Registration Statement on Forgh(Bo. 333-181157) (the Registration Statement ” ), filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (tlileCommission ” ) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended"(thet " ), the prospectus included within the
Registration Statement (théBase Prospectus”), and the prospectus supplement dated Novemt#d 12, filed with the Commission pursuant
to Rule 424(b) of the Rules and Regulations ofAhe(the “ Prospectus Supplement ” and together with the Base Prospectus, tRedspectus
™). The Shares are to be sold by the Company iordemce with the Sales Agreement, dated Novemk&d 12, between the Company and
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated (th&greement ), as described in the Prospectus.

In connection with this opinion, we have examinad eelied upon the Registration Statement and theg@ctus, the Agreement, the
Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation Antended and Restated Bylaws, and the originat®pies certified to our satisfaction of
such records, documents, certificates, memorandatn@r instruments as in our judgment are necgssappropriate to enable us to render
the opinion expressed below. In rendering this iopinwe have assumed the genuineness and autheofiaill signatures on original
documents; the genuineness and authenticity afoallments submitted to us as originals; the confgnm originals of all documents
submitted to us as copies; the accuracy, complesegned authenticity of certificates of public offis; and the due authorization, execution an
delivery of all documents where due authorizat@®ecution and delivery are prerequisites to theotiffeness of such documents.

Our opinion herein is expressed solely with respetie federal laws of the United States of Anmeeaad the General Corporation Law of the
State of Delaware. Our opinion is based on thess &5 in effect on the date hereof. We expresgimoam as to whether the laws of any
particular jurisdiction other than those identifigliove are applicable to the subject matter hereof.

On the basis of the foregoing, and in reliancegtbey we are of the opinion that the Shares, whishasw issued against payment therefor in
accordance with the Agreement, the RegistratioteBtant and the Prospectus, will be validly issteitl paid and nonassessable.

4401 EASTGATE MALL, SAN DIEGO, CA 92121 T: (858p€-6000 F: (858) 55-6420 WWW.COOLEY.COWN



Vical Incorporated
November 7, 201
Page Two

We consent to the reference to our firm under #ion “Legal Matters” in the Prospectus and toftlieg of this opinion as an exhibit to a
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to be filed with ®@mmission for incorporation by reference into Registration Statement.

Very truly yours,

Cooley LLP

By: /s/ Sean M. Clayton
Sean M. Clayto

4401 EASTGATE MALL, SAN DIEGO, CA 92121 T: (85856-6000 F: (858) 550-6420 WWW.COOLEY.COM



Exhibit 10.1
VICAL INCORPORATED

Common Stock
($0.01 par value per share)

AT-THE-MARKET EQUITY OFFERING SALES AGREEMENT
November 7, 201

STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY, INCORPORATED
One South Street, ¥5 Floor
Baltimore, Maryland 21202

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Vical Incorporated, a Delaware corporation (thegh@pany”), proposes, subject to the terms and conditionscsteeein, to issue and s
from time to time to or through Stifel, Nicolaus@ompany, Incorporated (“Stifel Nicolaus”), as sagent and/or principal (“* Agefi}, shares
(the “ Share$ ) of the Company’s common stock, $0.01 par valueshare (the * Common Sto¢k having an aggregate offering price of up
to $50,000,000 (the “ Maximum Offering SiZeon the terms set forth in Section 2 of this AetMarket Equity Offering Sales Agreement (the
“ Agreement’). The Company agrees that whenever it determimagll Shares directly to the Agent as princifiakill enter into a separate
agreement (each, a “ Terms Agreeni@mm substantially the form of Annex | hereto,athg to such sale in accordance with Section tBisf
Agreement. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Comypzhall not issue or sell pursuant to this Agreetnaé aggregate amount of Common
Stock that would cause the Company to exceed tloreianof securities issuable pursuant to Instructidh6 of Form S-3 at any time the
Company is subject to such limitation. For purpadfedarification, Stifel Nicolaus shall have noligiation with respect to the Company’s
compliance with the foregoing sentence.

Section 1. Representations and WarrantiBlse Company represents and warrants to the Agehas of the date of this Agreement, eacl
Applicable Time (as defined in Section 1(c) bel@aml each Settlement Date (as defined in Sectignb2{gw):

(a) Compliance with Registration Requirementfie Company has filed with the Securities andiarge Commission (the “
Commissiori) a registration statement under the Securitiesodhd 933, as amended (the * 1933 Agton Form S-3 (File No. 333-181157), in
respect of the Company’s Common Stock (includirg$hares) (collectively, the * Securitigsot earlier than three years prior to the date
hereof; such registration statement, and any ptesttere amendment thereto, has become effectivé;re stop order suspending the
effectiveness of such registration statement orpamythereof has been issued and no proceediribdbpurpose has been initiated or, to the
knowledge of the Company, threatened by the Coniomigthe base prospectus filed as part of suctstegion statement, in the form in which
it has most recently been filed with the Commisgiaror prior to the date of this Agreement, is irafter called the “ Basic Prospectiishe
various parts of such registration statement, blialy all exhibits thereto and any prospectus suppté or prospectus relating to the Shares
is filed with the Commission and deemed by virtfi®ole 430B under the 1933 Act to be part of swedistration statement, each as amendec
at the time such part of the registration staterbestime effective, are hereinafter collectivelyechthe “ Registration Statemehthe
prospectus supplement specifically relating toShares prepared and filed with the Commission @untsto Rule 424(b) under the 1933 Act is
hereinafter called the_ * Prospectus Supplerfigtite Basic Prospectus, as amended and suppledheptine Prospectus Supplement, is
hereinafter called the_* Prospectusiny reference herein to the Basic ProspectesPtiospectus Supplement or the Prospectus shdéidmed
to refer to and include the documents incorporaieteference therein pursuant to Item 12 of ForBBwder the 1933 Act; any reference to
any amendment or supplement to the Basic ProspebriProspectus Supplement or the Prospectustshdiemed to refer to and include any
post-effective amendment to the Registration Statgnany prospectus supplement or prospectusirglatithe Shares filed with the
Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the 19&3aAd any documents filed under the Securitieh&mnge Act of 1934, as amended (the
1934 Act”), and incorporated therein, in each case afterddite of the Basic Prospectus, the ProspectudeSnept or the Prospectus, as the
case may be; any reference to any amendment to




the Registration Statement shall be deemed to refend include any annual report of the Compaley fpursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the 1934 Act after the effective date of the Regt&in Statement that is incorporated by referendbe Registration Statement; and argstiel
free writing prospectus” as defined in Rule 433amthe 1933 Act relating to the Shares is heregénafalled an “ Issuer Free Writing
Prospectus).

No order preventing or suspending the use of ttecHarospectus, the Prospectus Supplement, theddtos or any Issuer Free Writing
Prospectus has been issued by the Commissionharbsic Prospectus and the Prospectus Suppleaté¢ng time of filing thereof,
conformed in all material respects to the requinetsef the 1933 Act and the rules and regulatidrtke Commission thereunder (the “ 1933
Act Reqgulations) and did not contain an untrue statement of aenf@tfact or omit to state a material fact reqdite be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements therein, inghedr the circumstances under which they were miadiemisleading.

For the purposes of this Agreement, the “ Applieabime” means, with respect to any Shares, the time lfety of instructions to sell
Shares pursuant to Section 2(b) hereof or of dgliegéa Terms Agreement, as applicable, for the sékuch Shares pursuant to this
Agreement. The Prospectus and the applicable 1$3@erWriting Prospectus(es) issued at or priauith Applicable Time, taken together
(collectively, and, with respect to any Sharesetbgr with the public offering price of such Shates “ General Disclosure Packdgyes of
each Applicable Time and each Settlement Date,nagillinclude any untrue statement of a materigldaomit to state any material fact
necessary in order to make the statements thémetime light of the circumstances under which theye made, not misleading; and each
applicable Issuer Free Writing Prospectus will cantflict with the information contained in the Retgation Statement, the Prospectus
Supplement or the Prospectus and each such Isseeiiting Prospectus, as supplemented by anah taiggether with the General Disclosure
Package as of such Applicable Time, will not inéwhy untrue statement of a material fact or oondtate any material fact necessary in orde
to make the statements therein, in the light ofdiheumstances under which they were made, noewandléhg.

(b) Incorporation of Documents by Referendée documents incorporated or deemed to be incaipd by reference in the Registration
Statement and the Prospectus, when they becanotiwdfer were filed with the Commission, as theecamy be, complied in all material
respects with the requirements of the 1934 Acttaredules and regulations of the Commission uritke1®834 Act, and, when read together
with the other information in the Prospectus, (aha time the Registration Statement became éffedtb) at the time the Prospectus was
issued and (c) on the date of this Agreement, diccantain an untrue statement of a material facinait to state a material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary to make the statertmtsn, in the light of the circumstances undeiciwhhey were made, not misleading.

(c) Independent Registered Public Accounting Fiennst & Young LLP, who have expressed their apinivith respect to the financial
statements (which term as used in this Agreemetdes the related notes thereto) filed with then@assion as a part of the Registration
Statement and incorporated by reference in the @EBésclosure Package and the Prospectus (ea¢hApplicable Prospectusand
collectively, the “ Applicable Prospectus®sare (i) independent public or certified public asstants as required by the 1933 Act and the
Act, (i) in compliance with the applicable requitents relating to the qualification of accountamsder Rule 2-01 of Regulation S-X and
(iii) an independent registered public accounting fas defined by the Public Company Accounting Gigit Board (the “* PCAOB) whose
registration has not been suspended or revokedaititk Company’s knowledge, who has not requesiet registration to be withdrawn.

(d) Financial StatementsThe financial statements filed with the Commissis a part of the Registration Statement and dieclin the
General Disclosure Package and the Prospectuspfagty the consolidated financial position oet@ompany and its subsidiaries as of ar
the dates indicated and the results of their ojmraiand cash flows for the periods specified. Jingporting schedules included in the
Registration Statement present fairly the inforovatiequired to be stated therein. Such financé#éstents and supporting schedules have be
prepared in conformity with generally accepted actimg principles as applied in the United Stafgsliad on a consistent basis throughout th
periods involved, except as may be expressly statdtk related notes thereto. No other finandetiesnents or supporting schedules are
required to be included in a Registration Stateroeainy Applicable Prospectus. The financial datdarth or incorporated by reference in
each Applicable Prospectus fairly present the mftion set forth therein on a basis consistent thigt of the audited
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financial statements contained in each Registraiibement and each Applicable Prospectus. To ¢imep@nys knowledge, no person who
been suspended or barred from being associatechwébistered public accounting firm, or who hakeéato comply with any sanction pursu
to Rule 5300 promulgated by the PCAOB, has pasditeiph in or otherwise aided the preparation of uglitad, the financial statements,
supporting schedules or other financial data filéith the Commission as a part of a Registratione®tant and included in any Applicable
Prospectus.

(e) No Material Adverse Change in BusineExcept as otherwise disclosed in the Generall@ssce Package, subsequent to the
respective dates as of which information is givethie General Disclosure Package: (i) there has beenaterial adverse change, or any
development that could reasonably be expectedstdtrie a material adverse change, in the condifioancial or otherwise, or in the earnings,
business, operations or prospects, whether orrigd@ from transactions in the ordinary coursdasginess, of the Company and its
subsidiaries, considered as one entity (any suahgghis called a* Material Adverse Charig€ii) the Company and its subsidiaries,
considered as one entity, have not incurred angmatiability or obligation, indirect, direct aontingent, not in the ordinary course of
business nor entered into any material transacti@greement not in the ordinary course of busireass (iii) there has been no dividend or
distribution of any kind declared, paid or madetty Company or, except for dividends paid to thenGany or other subsidiaries, any of its
subsidiaries on any class of capital stock or refpage or redemption by the Company or any of bsisliaries of any class of capital stock.

(f) Incorporation and Good Standing of the Compang its SubsidiariesEach of the Company and its subsidiaries has deln
incorporated or organized, as the case may besaradidly existing as a corporation, partnershipimited liability company, as applicable, in
good standing under the laws of the jurisdictiofit®fncorporation or organization and has the poavel authority (corporate or other) to own,
lease and operate its properties and to condustiimess as described in each Applicable Prospeai, in the case of the Company, to entel
into and perform its obligations under this Agreemexcept where the failure to be in good staneingld not reasonably be expected to re
in a Material Adverse Change. Each of the Compamlyesach subsidiary is duly qualified as a foreigrporation, partnership or limited
liability company, as applicable, to transact bassand is in good standing in the State of Caliéoand each other jurisdiction in which such
qualification is required, whether by reason of elaership or leasing of property or the condudbudiness, except where the failure to be sc
qualified or in good standing would not reasondi#yexpected to result in a Material Adverse ChaAfef the issued and outstanding capital
stock or other equity or ownership interests ohesubsidiary have been duly authorized and valgfiyed, are fully paid and nonassessable
and, except as set forth in the General DiscloBakage, are owned by the Company, directly outjirsubsidiaries, free and clear of any
security interest, mortgage, pledge, lien, encumi®ar adverse claim. The Company does not oworral, directly or indirectly, any
corporation, association or other entity other tfipthe subsidiaries, if any, listed in Exhibit #1the Company most recent Annual Report
Form 10 K, (ii) any subsidiaries described in then€ral Disclosure Package and (iii) such othetiestomitted from Exhibit 21 which, when
such omitted entities are considered in the aggeegma single subsidiary, would not constitutsigriificant subsidiary” within the meaning of
Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X.

() Capitalization and Other Capital Stock Mattefs of the dates indicated therein, the authorimlied and outstanding capital stock
of the Company was as set forth in each Applic@btespectus. Since the most recent date such infermaas included in an Applicable
Prospectus, there has been no material change authorized, issued and outstanding capital stbthe Company (other than for subsequen
issuances, if any, pursuant to employee benefitspiescribed in such General Disclosure Packaga, iye exercise of outstanding options or
warrants or the settlement of restricted stocksutdscribed in such Applicable Prospectus, asudt iifssales of Shares hereunder or as
otherwise described in the General Disclosure Rpgkd he shares of Common Stock (including the &)aronform in all material respects to
the description thereof contained in the Generatldsure Package. All of the issued and outstan8iirages have been duly authorized and
validly issued, are fully paid and nonassessabietave been issued in compliance with federal taté securities laws. None of the
outstanding Shares was issued in violation of aegmptive rights, rights of first refusal or ottsémilar rights to subscribe for or purchase
securities of the Company. Except as may have isserd pursuant to the Company’s stock option dinerstock plans or arrangements, in
each case as described in the General Disclosaka@e, there are no authorized or outstanding egtiearrants, preemptive rights, rights of
first refusal or other rights to purchase, or egoitdebt securities convertible into or exchandgab exercisable for, any capital stock of the
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Company or any of its subsidiaries other than tleaseirately described in each Applicable Prosped@tus description of the Company’s stock
option, stock bonus and other stock plans or agaregts, and the options or other rights grantecktimeler, set forth in each Applicable
Prospectus accurately and fairly presents thenmdition required to be shown with respect to suahqlarrangements, options and rights. All
grants of options to acquire shares of Common Steakh, a * Company Stock Optitnwere validly issued and approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company, a committee thereof oindividual with authority duly delegated by thedd of Directors of the Company or a
committee thereof. Grants of Company Stock Optisese (i) made in material compliance with all appble laws and (ii) as a whole, made ir
material compliance with the terms of the plansainhich such Company Stock Options were issuedrélts no and has been no policy or
practice of the Company to coordinate the graif@ahpany Stock Options with the release or othefipamnouncement of material
information regarding the Company or its resultepérations or prospects. Except as describectiGtneral Disclosure Package and the
Prospectus, the Company has not sold or issue@laares during the six-month period preceding the dany Prospectus, including any
sales pursuant to Rule 144A under, or Regulations 8 of, the 1933 Act other than Shares issuesiyaunt to employee benefit plans, quali
stock options plans or other employee compensatams or pursuant to outstanding options, rightsanmants.

(h) Authorization of AgreementsThis Agreement has been, and any Terms Agreewiltite, duly authorized, executed and delivered
by, and this Agreement is, and any Terms Agreeméhbe, a valid and binding agreement of, the Camy enforceable against the Company
in accordance with its terms, except as rightad@mnification hereunder may be limited by appliedaw and except as the enforcement
hereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvencyrganization, moratorium or other similar laws tielg to or affecting the rights and
remedies of creditors or by general equitable jpies.

(i) Authorization of SharesThe Shares have been duly authorized for issuamdesale pursuant to this Agreement and, wheedsand
delivered by the Company pursuant to this Agreeroeany Terms Agreement, will be validly issuedlyfppaid and nonassessable, and the
issuance and sale of the Shares is not subjectytpr@emptive rights, rights of first refusal ohet similar rights to subscribe for or purchase
the Shares.

() Non-Contravention of Existing Instruments; No Furthertorizations or Approvals Requiredleither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries is in violation of its charter or byl partnership agreement or operating agreemesiindlar organizational document, as
applicable, or is in default (or, with the givingrmtice or lapse of time, would be in defaultDgfault”) under any indenture, mortgage, loan
or credit agreement, note, contract, franchisesdea other instrument to which the Company ordfrits subsidiaries is a party or by which it
or any of them may be bound (including, withoutitation, any credit agreement, indenture, pledge@ment, security agreement or other
instrument or agreement evidencing, guaranteeawyréng or relating to indebtedness of the Compargny of its subsidiaries), or to which
any of the property or assets of the Company orddiiig subsidiaries is subject (each, an * Exiglinstrument’), except for such Defaults
described in the General Disclosure Package omatdwot reasonably be expected to, individuallynathe aggregate, result in a Material
Adverse Change. The Company’s execution, delivadymerformance of this Agreement and any Terms émgent, consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby and by any Temgneenent and by each Applicable Prospectus andghance and sale of the Shares
(i) have been duly authorized by all necessaryaate action and will not result in any violatiohtle provisions of the charter or bylaws,
partnership agreement or operating agreement dlasianganizational document of the Company or amlysidiary, as applicable, (ii) will not
conflict with or constitute a breach of, or Defauftder, or result in the creation or impositioraaf lien, charge or encumbrance upon any
property or assets of the Company or any of itsislidries pursuant to, or require the consent gfather party to, any Existing Instrument,
except for such breaches, Defaults or resultsituré to obtain such consent, as would not redsgrize expected, individually or in the
aggregate, to result in a Material Adverse Chamgk(&é) will not result in any violation of any V@ administrative regulation or administrative
or court decree applicable to the Company or abgigiary, except for such violations as would re@sonably be expected, individually or in
the aggregate, to result in a Material Adverse @kahlo consent, approval, authorization or othdepof, or registration or filing with, any
court or other governmental or regulatory authasityagency, is required for the Company’s executitativery and performance of this
Agreement or any Terms Agreement and consummafitiredransactions contemplated hereby and by &3 Agreement and each
Applicable Prospectus, except such as have beamebtor made or will be made by the Company utite933 Act, or that may be required
under applicable state securities or blue sky lamgsfrom the Financial Industry Regulatory Authp(it EINRA ™).
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(k) No Material Actions or Proceeding&xcept as disclosed in the General Disclosur&dtps; there are no legal or governmental
actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to then@mny’s knowledge, threatened against or affedtiegCompany or any of its subsidiaries,
which (i) have as the subject thereof any officedicector of, or property owned or leased by, @mmpany or any of its subsidiaries or
(ii) relate to environmental or discrimination nea#t, where in any such case (A) to the Companyssviedge, there is a substantial likelihood
that such action, suit or proceeding will be deiaed adversely to the Company, such subsidiarych sfficer or director, (B) any such
action, suit or proceeding, if so determined adsgravould reasonably be expected to result in ek Adverse Change or adversely affect
the consummation of the transactions contemplagetiib Agreement or (C) any such action, suit @cpeding is or would be material in the
context of the sale of Shares. Except as disclos#te General Disclosure Package, no materialrldispute with the employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, or to the Camyfsaknowledge, with the employees of any principgbplier, manufacturer, customer or
contractor of the Company, exists or, to the Comjsaknowledge, is threatened or imminent.

() Accuracy of Exhibits There are no contracts or documents which angénestjto be described in the Registration Stateroettie
Prospectus or the documents incorporated by refertirerein or to be filed as exhibits thereto whielie not been so described and filed as
required.

(m) Intellectual Property RightsExcept as disclosed in the General Disclosur&dtgs; the Company and its subsidiaries own, posst
can acquire on reasonable terms sufficient tradesn&rade names, patent rights, copyrights, domaines, licenses, approvals, trade secrets
and other similar rights (collectively,“ Intellewtl Property Right¥) reasonably necessary to conduct their businessesrasonducted; exce
to the extent failure to own, possess or acquich $atellectual Property Rights would not resultiMaterial Adverse Change. Except as
disclosed in the General Disclosure Package, nettieeCompany nor any of its subsidiaries has veckior has any reason to believe that it
will receive, any naotice of infringement or confligith asserted Intellectual Property Rights ofesth Except as disclosed in the General
Disclosure Package or as would not be reasondddlylto result, individually or in the aggregate a Material Adverse Change, (A) to the
Company’s knowledge, there is no infringement, msapriation or violation by third parties of anfytbe Intellectual Property Rights owned
by the Company; (B) there is no pending or, toGoepany’s knowledge, threatened action, suit, pditey or claim by others challenging the
rights of the Company and its subsidiaries in canig such Intellectual Property Rights, and the gamy is unaware of any facts which would
form a reasonable basis for any such claim, thatdyondividually or in the aggregate, togetherhwdiny other claims in this subsection
(m) result in a Material Adverse Change; (C) thiellectual Property Rights owned by the Companyiensgubsidiaries and, to the Company’s
knowledge, the Intellectual Property Rights liceahtethe Company and its subsidiaries have not bdpriged by a court of competent
jurisdiction invalid or unenforceable, in wholeinrpart, and except as otherwise disclosed in thee@l Disclosure Package, there it
pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatexwdidn, suit, proceeding or claim by others chajieg the validity or scope of any such
Intellectual Property Rights, and the Company iaware of any facts which would form a reasonabtgsbfar any such claim that would,
individually or in the aggregate, together with antlger claims in this subsection (m) result in atdvial Adverse Change; (D) there is no
pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatexwin, suit, proceeding or claim by others that@ompany or its subsidiaries infringe,
misappropriate or otherwise violate any IntelletRi@perty Rights or other proprietary rights dfi@ts, the Company and its subsidiaries have
not received any written notice of such claim amel €Company is unaware of any other facts which @éaim a reasonable basis for any such
claim that would reasonably be expected, indivijuad in the aggregate, together with any otheinekain this subsection (m) to result in a
Material Adverse Change; and (E) to the Compangtaedge, no employee of the Company or a subsidiaithe Company is in or has ever
been in violation in any material respect of anyntef any employment contract, patent disclosure@ment, invention assignment agreement
non-competition agreement, neolicitation agreement, nondisclosure agreemeanhgmestrictive covenant to or with a former emglowhere
the basis of such violation relates to such emm@syemployment with the Company or a subsidiarthefCompany, or actions undertaken by
the employee while employed with the Company autzsiliary of the Company and would reasonably lpeeted to result, individually or in
the aggregate, in a Material Adverse Change. T&tirapany’s knowledge, all material technical infation developed by and belonging to
the Company and its subsidiaries for which theyehaat sought, and do not intend to seek, to pateatherwise protect pursuant to applicable
intellectual property laws has been kept confiddmr disclosed only under obligations of confidality. The Company is not a party to or
bound by any options, licenses or agreements with




respect to the Intellectual Property Rights of atiyer person or entity that are required to béas#t in any Applicable Prospectus and are not
described therein. The General Disclosure Packageins in all material respects the same desonpif the matters set forth in the preceding
sentence contained in any Applicable ProspectuseMd the technology employed by the Company oradnts subsidiaries has been obtaine
or is being used by the Company or any of its sli@dses in violation of any contractual obligatibimding on the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or, to the Company’s knowledge, anysadr its subsidiaries’ officers, directors orgoyees or otherwise in violation of the rights
of any persons, except in each case for such idakthat would not reasonably be expected to résal Material Adverse Change.

(n) No Price Stabilization or Manipulation; Compi@@ with Regulation M The Company has not taken, nor will the Compaikg t
directly or indirectly, any action designed to loat might be reasonably expected to cause or riesstidbilization or manipulation of the price
of the shares of Common Stock or any other “refegesecurity” (as defined in Rule 100 of Regulafibmnder the 1934 Act (“ Requlation M
")) whether to facilitate the sale or resale of 8teares or otherwise, and has taken no action whieid directly or indirectly violate
Regulation M.

(o) All Necessary PermitsExcept as disclosed in the General Disclosuré&dpe; the Company and each subsidiary posseswvalidh
and current certificates, authorizations, apprgwtemptions and/or permits issued by the apprtpsi@te, federal or foreign regulatory
agencies or bodies necessary to conduct theirctgpdusinesses, and neither the Company norasidiary has received, or has any reasol
to believe that it will receive, any notice of peatlings relating to the revocation or modificataénor non-compliance with, any such
certificate, authorization or permit which, singlyin the aggregate, if the subject of an unfavieralecision, ruling or finding, would
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Aslv€hange.

(p) Title to Property The Company and each of its subsidiaries has gonddnarketable title to all of the real and pess@mnoperty and
other assets reflected as owned in the finana&tstents referred to in Section 1(d) above (oméisee in any Applicable Prospectus), in eack
case free and clear of any security interests,gagds, liens, encumbrances, equities, adverseschaioh other defects, except such as do not
materially and adversely affect the value of sudpprty and do not materially interfere with the usade or proposed to be made of such
property by the Company or such subsidiary. ToGbmpany’s knowledge, the real property, improvemeaguipment and personal property
held under lease by the Company or any subsidi@¥eld under valid and enforceable leases, with sxceptions as are not material and do
not materially interfere with the use made or psgabto be made of such real property, improvemeqtapment or personal property by the
Company or such subsidiary.

(q) Company Not ahinvestment Comparly. The Company is not and, after giving effect te dtffifering and sale of the Shares and the
application of the proceeds therefrom as descrilmetr “Use of Proceeds” in each Applicable Progpeatill not be required to register as an
“investment company,” as such term is defined alttvestment Company Act of 1940, as amended, dhdat be an entity “controlled” by
an “investment company” within the meaning of siai.

(r) Compliance with Environmental Law&xcept as described in each Applicable Prospeatdsexcept as would not reasonably be
expected to, singly or in the aggregate, resudt Material Adverse Change, (i) neither the Compamyany of its subsidiaries is in violation of
any federal, state, local or foreign statute, lave, regulation, ordinance, code, policy or rule@mmon law or any judicial or administrative
interpretation thereof, including any judicial amainistrative order, consent, decree or judgmedting to pollution or protection of human
health, the environment (including, without limitat, ambient air, surface water, groundwater, lsundace or subsurface strata) or wildlife,
including, without limitation, laws and regulatioredating to the release or threatened releashervhizals, pollutants, contaminants, wastes,
toxic substances, hazardous substances, petrolepatroleum products (collectively, * Hazardous Bfé#ils”) or to the manufacture,
processing, distribution, use, treatment, stordggposal, transport or handling of Hazardous Mateifcollectively, “ Environmental Law?3,

(ii) the Company and its subsidiaries have all pex;nauthorizations and approvals required undgragplicable Environmental Laws and are
each in compliance with their requirements, (ligéte are no pending or, to the Company’s knowlettgeatened administrative, regulatory or
judicial actions, suits, demands, demand lettdéasns, liens, notices of noncompliance or violafimvestigation or proceedings relating to
Environmental Law against the Company or any o$ufissidiaries and (iv) there are no events or oigtances of which the Company
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is aware that might reasonably be expected to therbasis of an order for clean-up or remediatimrgn action, suit or proceeding by any
private party or governmental body or agency, agjanaffecting the Company or any of its subsid&relating to Hazardous Materials or any
Environmental Laws.

(s) No Applicable Registration or Other Similar Rig. There are no persons with registration or othmailar rights to have any equity or
debt securities registered for sale under a Ragjistr Statement or included in the offering conttatga by this Agreement, except for such
rights as have been duly waived.

(t) Companys Accounting SystemThe Company and each of its subsidiaries make&aeg accurate books and records and maintain :
system of internal accounting controls sufficienptovide reasonable assurance that (i) transaciimmexecuted in accordance with
management’s general or specific authorizatiohfré@insactions are recorded as necessary to perempiaration of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting pipies as applied in the United States and to miairst@ecountability for assets; (iii) access to
assets is permitted only in accordance with managé&€mgeneral or specific authorization; and (h@ tecorded accountability for assets is
compared with existing assets at reasonable inteaval appropriate action is taken with respeernp differences. Except as disclosed in the
General Disclosure Package, the Company is noteawfaany material weakness in the Company'’s interoatrol over financial reporting
(whether or not remediated) and since the mosntdiseal year-end, there has been no change i@tmepany’s internal control over financial
reporting that has materially affected, or is rewdady likely to materially affect, the Company’sémal control over financial reporting.

(u) S3 Eligibility . At the time the Registration Statement was osljjndeclared effective and at the time the ComfmAynual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2€He“(Annual Report) was filed with the Commission, the Company niet then
applicable requirements for use of Form S-3 unklerl©33 Act. The Company is eligible to offer artl securities under the Registration
Statement (including the offer and sale of the &f)arAt the earliest time after the filing of thed®stration Statement that the Company or
another offering participant made a bona fide offdthin the meaning of Rule 164(h)(2) under th&83 %\ct) of the Shares, the Company was
not an “ineligible issuer” as defined in Rule 40%ar the 1933 Act.

(v) Brokers. Except as contemplated by this Agreement or aaryn§ Agreement, there is no broker, finder or offaety that is entitled 1
receive from the Company any brokerage or find®sor other fee or commission as a result of earysiactions contemplated by this
Agreement or any Terms Agreement.

(w) [Reserved].

(x) Deemed Representatioiny certificate signed by any officer of the Caaing delivered to the Agent or to counsel for thea
pursuant to or in connection with this Agreemenaiy Terms Agreement shall be deemed a represamtatd warranty by the Company to
Agent as to the matters covered thereby as ofdteat dates indicated in such certificate.

(y) Compliance with the Sarban@xley Act. There is and has been no failure on the part o€ttrapany and any of the Company’s
directors or officers, in their capacities as suotgomply with any provision of the Sarbanes-Ox&y of 2002 and the rules and regulations
promulgated in connection therewith, including 88t#02 relating to loans and Sections 302 andrBling to certifications.

(z) Tax Law Compliance The Company and its consolidated subsidiariee tianely filed all federal, state and foreign inamand
franchise tax returns required to be filed or halined extensions thereof and have timely paitheés (including, without limitation, any
estimated taxes) required to be paid by any of thedy if due and payable, any related or similaessment, fine or penalty levied against any
of them except as may be being contested in gatddad by appropriate proceedings. The Companyrate adequate charges, accruals an
reserves in the applicable financial statementyred to in Section 1(d) above in respect of alkfal, state and foreign income and franchise
taxes for all periods as to which the tax liabitifythe Company or any of its consolidated subsiglishas not been finally determined.
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(aa)_nsuranceEach of the Company and its subsidiaries are@ushy recognized, financially sound and reputaisétutions with
policies in such amounts and with such deductibfescovering such risks as are generally deemeguatieand customary for their businesse
including, but not limited to, policies coveringateand personal property owned or leased by thepgaosnand its subsidiaries against theft,
damage, destruction and acts of vandalism andiesltmvering the Company and its subsidiaries fodpct liability claims and clinical trial
liability claims. The Company has no reason toebdadithat it or any subsidiary will not be abletéiyenew its existing insurance coverage as
and when such policies expire or (ii) to obtain pamable coverage from similar institutions as meybcessary or appropriate to conduct its
business as now conducted and at a cost that wotiieesult in a Material Adverse Change. Duringphst three years, the Company has not
been denied any insurance coverage material t8@ohgpany which it has sought or for which it hasliegop

(bb) Statistical and MarkeRelated Data The statistical, demographic and manadited data included in each Registration Statéisue
each Applicable Prospectus are based on or defiivadsources that the Company believes to be feliahd accurate or represent the
Company’s good faith estimates that are made obdbkis of data derived from such sources.

(cc) No Unlawful Contributions or Other Paymentseither the Company nor any of its subsidiariess to the Company’s knowledge,
any employee or agent of the Company or any sulsgidhas made any contribution or other paymeantoofficial of, or candidate for, any
federal, state or foreign office in violation ofyalaw or of the character required to be disclaseshch Registration Statement and each
Applicable Prospectus.

(dd) Disclosure Controls and Procedures; Deficien@i or Changes to Internal Control Over FinarRigthorting. The Company has
established and maintains disclosure controls aoceplures (as defined in 1934 Act Rules 13a-15(d)1&d-15(¢e)), which (i) are designed to
ensure that material information relating to therpany, including its consolidated subsidiariesnéde known to the Company’s principal
executive officer and its principal financial officby others within those entities, particularlyidg the periods in which the periodic reports
required under the 1934 Act are being preparedhéive been evaluated by management of the Confpaeffectiveness as of the end of the
Company’s most recent fiscal quarter; and (iii) @@mpany’s principal executive officer and prindifimancial officer concluded to be
effective at the reasonable assurance level. Basd¢lde most recent evaluation of its disclosurdrodmand procedures, except as disclosed in
the General Disclosure Package, the Company iawate of (i) any significant deficiencies or maaérweaknesses in the design or operation
of internal control over financial reporting whielne reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comyfsability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information or (ii) any frausdhether or not material, that involves managememther employees who have a significant
role in the Company'’s internal control over finalgieporting. The Company is not aware of any ckangts internal control over financial
reporting that has occurred during its most refisnél quarter that has materially affected, aeigsonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting

(ee)_Stock Exchange Listindgrhe shares of Common Stock are registered purso&ection 12(b) of the 1934 Act and are listadhe
Nasdag Global Market, and the Company has takexction designed to, or likely to have the effecttefminating the registration of tl
shares of Common Stock under the 1934 Act or dedigshe shares from the Nasdaq Global Market, asrthe Company received any
notification that the Commission or the Nasdaq @ldWarket is contemplating terminating such regiem or listing.

(ff) Related Party Transactiond here are no business relationships or relatety-ransactions involving the Company or any ef it
subsidiaries or any other person required to beribesl in each Applicable Prospectus which havebeen described as required. The Genere
Disclosure Package contains in all material respthe same description of the matters set forthérpreceding sentence contained in each
Applicable Prospectus.

(g9) FINRA Matters All of the information provided to the Agent ar tounsel for the Agent by the Company, its officend directors
and the holders of any securities (debt or equityptions to acquire any
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securities of the Company in connection with lettéitings or other supplemental information preddo FINRA pursuant to FINRA Rule
5110 or the National Association of Securities Bealnc. (the “ NASD) Conduct Rule 2710 or 2720 is true, complete ancectrNeither th
Company nor, to the knowledge of the Company, dnits@ffiliates (within the meaning of the NASD fauct Rule 2720(f)(1)) directly or
indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is undgmmmon control with, or is an associated persoth{wihe meaning of Article | Section 1(ee)
the By-laws of FINRA) of, any member of FINRA. Tleet Company’s knowledge, there are no affiliatiofith WINRA among the Company’s
officers or directors.

(hh) ERISA Compliance The Company and its subsidiaries and any “emgdgnefit plan” (as defined under the EmployeerBetent
Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and thelations and published interpretations thereufctdtectively, “ ERISA™)) established or
maintained by the Company, its subsidiaries or tHeRISA Affiliates” (as defined below) are in cotigmnce in all material respects with
ERISA. “ ERISA Affiliate” means, with respect to the Company or a subsidary member of any group of organizations descrin
Sections 414(b),(c),(m) or (o) of the Internal Rewe Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulatimhpublished interpretations thereunder
(the “ Codé”) of which the Company or such subsidiary is a memExcept as described in the General DiscloBarkage, no “reportable
event” (as defined under ERISA) has occurred oeasonably expected to occur with respect to ampteyee benefit plan” established or
maintained by the Company, its subsidiaries orafrthheir ERISA Affiliates. Except as described lretGeneral Disclosure Package, no
“employee benefit plan” established or maintaingdhHe Company, its subsidiaries or any of their &R Affiliates, if such “employee benefit
plan” were terminated, would have any “amount dunded benefit liabilities” (as defined under ER)SExcept as described in the General
Disclosure Package, neither the Company, its sigvs@d nor any of their ERISA Affiliates has incedror reasonably expects to incur any
liability under (i) Title IV of ERISA with respedb termination of, or withdrawal from, any “emplaybenefit plan” or (ii) Sections 412, 4971,
4975 or 4980B of the Code. Each “employee ben#it"pestablished or maintained by the Companystitssidiaries or any of their ERISA
Affiliates that is intended to be qualified undesc8on 401(a) of the Code is so qualified and, pkes described in the General Disclosure
Package, nothing has occurred, whether by actidailore to act, which would reasonably be expedtecesult in the loss of such qualificati

(i) No Outstanding Loans or Other Extensions ofditr. Except as described in the General Disclosur&d®g; since the adoption of
Section 13(K) of the 1934 Act, neither the Compaayany of its subsidiaries has extended or maiathtredit, arranged for the extension of
credit, or renewed any extension of credit, infiren of a personal loan, to or for any directoegecutive officer (or equivalent thereof) of the
Company and/or such subsidiary except for sucmsidas of credit as are expressly permitted byi&edi3(k) of the 1934 Act.

(ji) Compliance with Laws The Company has not been advised, and has nanréabelieve, that it and each of its subsidiaaiesnot
conducting business in compliance with all appliedaws, rules and regulations of the jurisdictiamsvhich it is conducting business, except
where failure to be so in compliance would not leisua Material Adverse Change. Except as desdribéhe General Disclosure Package, the
Company has not received any FDA Form 483, notiglweerse finding, warning letter, untitled letterother correspondence or notice from
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or any oftp@vernmental authority alleging or asserting nonglience with any laws applicable to t
Company.

(kk) Clinical Trials. The studies, tests and preclinical and clinigalg conducted by or on behalf of the Company igmdubsidiaries
were and, if still pending, are being conductedampliance with experimental protocols, procedams controls pursuant to accepted
professional scientific standards and all appliedévs and authorizations, including, without liatibn, the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic
Act and the rules and regulations promulgated tiveter, except where the failure to be in compliama® not resulted and would not
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Aslv€hange; the descriptions of the results of stuties, tests and trials contained in any
Applicable Prospectus are accurate and compleat material respects and fairly present the datévdd from such studies, tests and trials;
except to the extent disclosed in any Applicablespectus, the Company is not aware of any stutdists or trials, the results of which the
Company believes reasonably call into questiorsthdy, test, or trial results described or refetreith any Applicable Prospectus when vie
in the context in which such results are descréedithe clinical state of development; and the Comgpand its subsidiaries have not received
any notices or correspondence from any applicateignmental authority requiring the terminatiorsggension or material modification of any
studies, tests or preclinical or clinical trialsndoicted by or on behalf of the Company or its glibsies.
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(II) Dividend Restrictions No subsidiary of the Company is prohibited otnieted, directly or indirectly, from paying divides to the
Company, or from making any other distribution wigispect to such subsidiary’s equity securitieam repaying to the Company or any
other subsidiary of the Company any amounts thatfneen time to time become due under any loansdeaaces to such subsidiary from the
Company or from transferring any property or astethe Company or to any other subsidiary.

(mm) Foreign Corrupt Practices Adieither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries to the Company’s knowledge, any director,
officer, agent, employee, affiliate or other persating on behalf of the Company or any of its @libsies is aware of or has taken any action,
directly or indirectly, that has resulted or wouddult in a violation of the Foreign Corrupt Praesi Act of 1977, as amended, and the rules ar
regulations thereunder (the “ FCPA including, without limitation, making use ofélmails or any means or instrumentality of intdesta
commerce corruptly in furtherance of an offer, payitn promise to pay or authorization of the paynuér@iny money, or other property, gift,
promise to give, or authorization of the givingaofything of value to any “foreign official” (as duterm is defined in the FCPA) or any foreign
political party or official thereof or any candiddbr foreign political office, in contravention tife FCPA; and the Company and its subsidi
and, to the Company’s knowledge, the Company’iakis have conducted their respective businessesmpliance with the FCPA and have
instituted and maintain policies and proceduresgtiesl to ensure, and which are reasonably expécteohtinue to ensure, continued
compliance therewith.

(nn) Money Laundering LawsThe operations of the Company and its subsidiarie, and have been conducted at all times, in
compliance with applicable financial recordkeepamyl reporting requirements of the Currency andigoréransactions Reporting Act of
1970, as amended, the money laundering statutbagiplicable jurisdictions, the rules and regiolas thereunder and any related or similar
applicable rules, regulations or guidelines, issagldninistered or enforced by any governmental agéeollectively, the “ Money Laundering
Laws”) and no action, suit or proceeding by or befamg eourt or governmental agency, authority or bodgny arbitrator involving the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with respe¢chtoMoney Laundering Laws is pending or, to the @any’s knowledge, threatened.

(00) OFAC. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries to the Company’s knowledge, any director, @ffijagent, employee,
affiliate or person acting on behalf of the Companwny of its subsidiaries is currently subjecary U.S. sanctions administered by the Of
of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Treasury Dapant (“ OFAC”); and the Company will not directly or indirectlyse the proceeds of this
offering, or lend, contribute or otherwise makeikde such proceeds to any subsidiary, joint venpartner or other person or entity, for the
purpose of financing the activities of any persarrently subject to any U.S. sanctions administéne®FAC.

(pp) FINRA Filing Exemption To enable the Agent to rely on FINRA Rule 5110{l(C)(i), (i) the Company was subject to the
requirements of Section 12 or 15(d) of the 1934 axul filed all the material required to be filedsuant to Sections 13, 14 or 15(d) for a
period of at least thirty-six calendar months immggly preceding the date of this Agreement; (i§ Company filed in a timely manner all
reports required to be filed pursuant to Section1¥3or 15(d) of the 1934 Act during the twelveeralar months and any portion of a month
immediately preceding the date of this Agreemaéii};tlie last reported sale price of the Comparmgeaimon stock on the Nasdaq Global
Market on November 6, 2012 was $3.44; (iv) as chaiate, there were greater than 50,000,000 sbathe Company’s common stock
outstanding and held by non-affiliates of the Compand (v) the Company has annual trading volufrzraillion shares or more.

(qqg) Offering Materials Furnished to Agenf so requested by the Agent, the Company wilvée to the Agent two complete copies of
the Registration Statement, each amendment thenek@ny Rule 462(b) Registration Statement anéci eonsent and certificate of experts
filed as a part thereof.
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(rr) Distribution of Offering Material By the Compw. The Company has not distributed and will notriiste, prior to the completion
the Agent’s distribution of the Shares, any offgrmaterial in connection with the offering and safi¢he Shares pursuant to this Agreement
other than the Basic Prospectus, the General BisddPackage, the Prospectus, any free writingopass reviewed and consented to by the
Agent, or the Registration Statement.

Section 2. Sale and Delivery of Shares

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions set foetteim, the Company agrees to issue and sell thrthggAgent acting as sales agent
or directly to the Agent acting as principal fronmé to time, and the Agent agrees to use its cormialBr reasonable efforts to sell as sales
agent for the Company, the Shares, up to the amdiat may be specified in any Terms Agreemensatherwise specified by the Company
pursuant to Section 2(b). Sales of the Sharesyif through the Agent acting as sales agent ocilljréo the Agent acting as principal will be
made by means of ordinary broketrginsactions on the Nasdaq Global Market, in pelyategotiated transactions or otherwise at markiees
prevailing at the time of sale, at prices relategrevailing market prices or at negotiated priéessthing to the contrary notwithstanding in t
Agreement, without the Company’s prior written camis(which may include explicit authorization iTarms Agreement), the Agent may not
place Shares (a) by any method other than thosaattto be an “at the market” offering as defineRiule 415 of the 1933 Act, including
without limitation sales made through the Nasdagp@l Market, on any other existing trading marketthe Common Stock or to or through a
market maker, (b) in privately negotiated transatgj or (c) for its own account as principal. TigeAt shall effect any sales of Shares in
accordance with applicable state and federal lavliss and regulations and the rules of the Nasdack3/1arket and otherwise in accordance
with the terms of the applicable Terms Agreemeiothifhg contained herein restricts, nor may be dektmeestrict, the Company from
undertaking another offering of its securities parg to a separate registration under the 1933dan exemption from such registration), or
another offering under the Registration Statenanatyided the Company complies with Section 3(p).

(b) Subject to the applicable Terms Agreement strirctions to sell shares delivered pursuant o $leiction 2(b), the Shares to be
sold pursuant to this Agreement are to be sold dailgt basis or otherwise as shall be agreed tthh&yCompany and the Agent on that trading
day (other than a day on which the Nasdaq Globak®tas scheduled to close prior to its regular kass closing time, each, a * Trading Day
") that the Company has satisfied its obligationder Section 6 of this Agreement and that the Camppas instructed the Agent to make suct
sales; provided that, so long as the Company’s Cam®&tock is not an “actively-traded security” withthe meaning of Rule 101(c)(1) of
Regulation M, in connection with the Agent’s intien of research reports about the Company, thenfAgnay, in its reasonable discretion, by
notice to the Company, delay the start of saleésigctinder this Agreement or any Terms Agreemsntip to two Trading Days as is
reasonably necessary to ensure compliance withlReguM and any other applicable legal or regulatequirements. On any Trading Day,
the Company may instruct the Agent by telephonaf{coed promptly by telecopy or email, which condimtion will be promptly
acknowledged by the Agent) as to the maximum nurab8hares to be sold by the Agent on such dagirinevent not in excess of the nurr
available for issuance under the Prospectus ancutiiently effective Registration Statement) arelnfinimum price per Share at which such
Shares may be sold. Subject to the terms and ¢onslihereof, the Agent shall use its commercialsonable efforts to sell as sales agent all
of the Shares so designated by the Company am@ imanner and on the terms designated by the Cogmpha Company and the Agent each
acknowledge and agree that (A) there can be noasseithat the Agent will be successful in seltimg Shares, (B) the Agent will incur no
liability or obligation to the Company or any otlgarson or entity if they do not sell Shares for emason other than a failure by the Agent to
use its commercially reasonable efforts consistétiit its normal trading and sales practices andiegiple law and regulations to sell such
Shares as required by this Agreement, and (C) tenAshall be under no obligation to purchase Shamea principal basis except as otherwis
specifically agreed by each of the Agent and then@any pursuant to a Terms Agreement. In the eviemconflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the terms of a Terms Agreementegtimest of such Terms Agreement will control.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company khat authorize the issuance and sale of, and tenfas sales agent shall no
obligated to use its commercially reasonable efftotsell, any Shares (i) at a price lower thamtivémum price therefor authorized from time
to time, or (ii) in a number in excess of the numiiieShares authorized from time to time to beéssand sold under this Agreement, in each
case, by the
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Company'’s board of directors, or a duly authorizecthmittee thereof, and notified to the Agent inting. In addition, the Company may, upon
notice to the Agent, suspend the offering of thar8& or the Agent may, upon notice to the Compsuspend the offering of the Shares with
respect to which the Agent is acting as sales dgemtny reason and at any time; providémwever, that such suspension or termination shal
not affect or impair the parties’ respective ohfigas with respect to the Shares sold hereunder fwrithe giving of such notice. Any notice
given pursuant to the preceding sentence may lendiy telephone (confirmed promptly by telecopgmrail, which confirmation will be
promptly acknowledged).

(d) The gross sales price of any Shares sold potrsodhis Agreement by the Agent acting as sajentof the Company shall be
the market price prevailing at the time of saledioares of the Company’s Common Stock sold by @penf\on the Nasdaq Global Market or
other existing trading market for the Common Stawk|f agreed to by the Company, at prices regptprevailing market prices or at
negotiated prices. The compensation payable tégeat for sales of Shares with respect to whichAbent acts as sales agent shall be eqt
2.5% of the gross sales price of the Shares fouatsmf Shares sold pursuant to this Agreement.Gdrapany may also sell Shares to the
Agent, acting as principal, at a price agreed upith the Agent at the relevant Applicable Time gmusuant to a separate Terms Agreement.
The remaining proceeds, after further deductiorafor transaction fees imposed by any governmeneigililatory or selfegulatory organizatic
in respect of such sales, shall constitute theorateeds to the Company for such Shares (the Pimteeds). The Agent shall notify the
Company as promptly as practicable if any deduatsderenced in the preceding sentence will be requi

(e) If acting as a sales agent hereunder, the Agjeit provide written confirmation to the Comparpmptly following the close of
trading on the Nasdaq Global Market, each day iithvBhares are sold under this Agreement settirt fbe number of Shares sold on such
day, the aggregate gross sales proceeds of thesShiag Net Proceeds to the Company and the coatpmmgayable by the Company to the
Agent with respect to such sales.

(f) Under no circumstances shall the aggregateiotjgrice or number, as the case may be, of Stlsaldgpursuant to this
Agreement and any Terms Agreement exceed the agjgretfering price or number, as the case mayfehares of Common Stock (i) set
forth in the preamble paragraph of this Agreemg@itavailable for issuance under the Prospectuktha then currently effective Registration
Statement or (iii) authorized from time to timeb® issued and sold under this Agreement or any 3 &gneement by the Company’s board of
directors, or a duly authorized committee theraaf] notified to the Agent in writing. In additiompder no circumstances shall any Shares wit
respect to which the Agent acts as sales agerdldénsan amount exceeding the number of sharesithforized and unissued shares of
Common Stock immediately prior to such sale.

(g) Settlement for sales of Shares pursuant toSbaion 2 will occur on the third business day thalso a Trading Day following
the trade date on which such sales are made, wanesiser date shall be agreed to by the Companytenéigent (each such day, &éttlemen
Date”). On each Settlement Date, the Shares sold thrtlug Agent for settlement on such date shall tigeted by the Company to the Agent
against payment of the Net Proceeds from the $aeatn Shares. Settlement for all Shares shalffeeted by book-entry delivery of Shares to
the Agent’s account at The Depository Trust Compagsinst payments by the Agent of the Net Prockedsthe sale of such Shares in same
day funds delivered to an account designated bZtmpany. If the Company shall default on its oddign to deliver Shares on any Settlen
Date, the Company shall, in addition to any inddioaiion obligation pursuant to Section 7, pay Ageent any commission to which it would
otherwise be entitled absent such default.

(h) Notwithstanding any other provision of this &gment, the Company and the Agent agree that as shShares shall take
place, and the Company shall not request the $aleyoShares that would be sold, and the Agent sbabe obligated to sell, during any
period in which the Company is, or would reasonddgydeemed to be, in possession of material nofiegnibrmation.

(i) Any obligation of the Agent to use its commaeili reasonable efforts to sell the Shares on lhelfidhe Company as sales agent
shall be subject to the continuing accuracy ofrpesentations and warranties of the Companymerethe performance by the Company of
its obligations hereunder and to the continuings&adtion of the additional conditions specified3action 6 of this Agreement.
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Section 3._Covenant$he Company agrees with the Agent:

(a) During any period when the delivery of a pradps is required in connection with the offeringsafte of Shares (whether physically
through compliance with Rule 153 or 172, or in libareof, a notice referred to in Rule 173(a) urtler1933 Act), (i) to make no further
amendment or any supplement to the Registraticiei@tnt or the Prospectus (other than an amendmenpplement relating to an offering
the Company’s securities which is unrelated toatffering of the Shares hereunder) prior to anyl&®nt Date which shall be disapproved by
the Agent promptly after reasonable notice theeeaf to advise the Agent, promptly after it receinesce thereof, of the time when any
amendment to the Registration Statement has bleeihdfii becomes effective or any amendment or sapmi¢ to the Prospectus (other than an
amendment or supplement relating to an offerinthefCompany’s securities which is unrelated todtffiering of the Shares hereunder) has
been filed and to furnish the Agent with copiesdoé (ii) to file promptly all other material retjed to be filed by the Company with the
Commission pursuant to Rule 433(d) under the 19&3 (i) to file promptly all reports and any defiive proxy or information statements
required to be filed by the Company with the Consiois pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 16{dhe 1934 Act, (iv) to advise the Age
promptly after it receives notice thereof, of theliance by the Commission of any stop order onpfader preventing or suspending the us
the Prospectus or other prospectus in respecedbltares, of the suspension of the qualificatiath@fShares for offering or sale in any
jurisdiction, of the initiation or threatening afaproceeding for any such purpose, or of any reigoye the Commission for the amending
supplementing of the Registration Statement oPttospectus or for additional information, and (vjhie event of the issuance of any such
order or of any such order preventing or suspentiagise of the Prospectus in respect of the Slhasspending any such qualification, to
promptly use its commercially reasonable effortelitain the withdrawal of such order; and in thergwof any such issuance of a notice of
objection, promptly to take such reasonable stspaay be necessary to permit offers and saleedbtiares by the Agent, which may include,
without limitation, amending the Registration Staént or filing a new registration statement, at@wenpany’s expense (references herein to
the Registration Statement shall include any suchrelment or new registration statement).

(b) Promptly from time to time to take such actamthe Agent may reasonably request to qualifystieres for offering and sale under
the securities laws of such jurisdictions as themtgnay request and to comply with such laws g0 germit the continuance of sales and
dealings therein in such jurisdictions for as l@asgmay be necessary to complete the sale of thresShmovided that in connection therewith
the Company shall not be required to qualify asrai§n corporation or to file a general consergervice of process in any jurisdiction; and to
promptly advise the Agent of the receipt by the @any of any notification with respect to the suspen of the qualification of the Shares for
offer or sale in any jurisdiction or the initiati@m threatening of any proceeding for such purpose.

(c) During any period when the delivery of a pragps is required (whether physically or through ptiance with Rules 153 or 172, or
in lieu thereof, a notice referred to in Rule 1j3(ader the 1933 Act) in connection with the offigrior sale of Shares, the Company will make
available to the Agent, as soon as practicable #feeexecution of this Agreement, and thereafmmftime to time furnish to the Agent, copies
of the most recent Prospectus in such quantitidsasuch locations as the Agent may reasonablyesgdor the purposes contemplated by the
1933 Act. During any period when the delivery gfraspectus is required (whether physically or tgfoaompliance with Rules 153 or 172, or
in lieu thereof, a notice referred to in Rule 1j3(ader the 1933 Act) in connection with the offigrior sale of Shares, and if at such time any
event shall have occurred as a result of whictPtlospectus as then amended or supplemented walldiénan untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state any material fact necessagrder to make the statements therein, in the bfthe circumstances under which they were
made when such Prospectus is delivered, not migigaar, if for any other reason it shall be neeggsluring such same period to amend or
supplement the Prospectus or to file under the 2234ny document incorporated by reference inRfaspectus in order to comply with the
1933 Act or the 1934 Act, to notify the Agent andite such document and to prepare and furnishaut charge to the Agent as many written
and electronic copies as the Agent may from timtnte reasonably request of an amended Prospectusupplement to the Prospectus whict
will correct such statement or omission or effectrscompliance.

(d) To make generally available to its securityleotdas soon as practicable, but in any event tettlaan sixteen months after the
effective date of the Registration Statement (dimelé in Rule 158(c) under the 1933 Act), an eagsistatement of the Company and its
subsidiaries (which need not be audited) complwiith Section 11(a) of the 1933 Act and the ruled mygulations of the Commission
thereunder (including, at the option of the Compdyle 158).
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(e) To pay the required Commission filing feestintato the Shares within the time required by RaB6(b)(1) under the 1933 Act and
otherwise in accordance with Rules 456(b) and 4%u#{der the 1933 Act.

(f) To use the Net Proceeds received by it fromstile of the Shares pursuant to this Agreemenaapd erms Agreement in the manner
specified in the General Disclosure Package.

(9) In connection with the offering and sale of 8teares, the Company will file with the Nasdaq @ldarket all documents and notic
and make all certifications, required by the Nas@#apal Market of companies that have securities #ne listed on the Nasdag Global Market
and will maintain such listings.

(h) To not take, directly or indirectly, and to sauits affiliates to refrain from taking, any actidesigned to cause or result in, or that has
constituted or might reasonably be expected totitates under the 1934 Act or otherwise, the staiilon or manipulation of the price of any
securities of the Company to facilitate the saleesale of the Shares.

(i) In each Annual Report on Form 10-K or QuartdrRigport on Form 10-Q filed by the Company in respéany quarter in which sales
of Shares were made by or through the Agent urdegreement or any Terms Agreement (each datehach any such document is filed,
and any date on which an amendment to any suchmiadis filed, a “* Company Periodic Report Dgtehe Company shall set forth with
regard to such quarter the number of Shares smdgh the Agent under this Agreement or any Termee@ment and the Net Proceeds
received by the Company with respect to sales af&hpursuant to this Agreement or any Terms Ageaém

()) On or prior to the date of this Agreement, @rpaor to the date on which the Company firstriasts the Agent to sell Shares pursuant
to Section 2(b) hereof or the date of the firstigiAgreement, as applicable (the “ First Saleguieibn Dat€’) and, after the First Sales
Instruction Date, at each time the Shares areafeld/to the Agent as principal on a Settlement Batepromptly after each (i) date the
Registration Statement or the Prospectus shaliiended or supplemented (other than (1) by an amemidon supplement providing solely for
the determination of the terms of the Shares,n(Zpnnection with the filing of a prospectus supptat that contains solely the information set
forth in Section 3(i), (3) in connection with thiérfg of any current reports on Form 8-K (otherrtteny current reports on Form 8-K which
contain financial statements, supporting schedaegher financial data of the type required tdileal by the Company pursuant to Regulation
S-X of the 1933 Act, including any current repanteorm 8-K under Iltem 2.02 of such form that issidared “filed” under the 1934 Act) or
(4) by a prospectus supplement relating to therioffieof other securities (including, without limii@n, other shares of Common Stock)) (each
such date, a “ Registration Statement Amendmerg Daind (ii) Company Periodic Report Date, the Compwill furnish or cause to be
furnished forthwith to the Agent a certificate dhtbe date of delivery to the Agent, in a form mrebly satisfactory to the Agent to the effect
that the statements contained in the certificdtermed to in Section 6(d) of this Agreement whicérevlast furnished to the Agent are true and
correct at the time of such amendment, supplenediitrgy, as the case may be, as though made adamd such time (except that such
statements shall be deemed to relate to the RatstrStatement, the Disclosure Package and trepBetus as amended and supplemented t
such time) or, in lieu of such certificate, a deztite of the same tenor as the certificate refetoein said Section 6(d), but modified as
necessary to relate to the Registration Statenrehthe Prospectus as amended and supplementedherdocument incorporated by refere
into the Prospectus, to the time of delivery oftsaertificate. As used in this paragraph, to themixthere shall be an Applicable Time on or
following the date referred to in clause (i) oy Gbove, promptly shall be deemed to be any timergrior to the next succeeding Applicable
Time.

(k) On or prior to the date of this Agreement, ompior to the First Sales Instruction Date anderathe First Sales Instruction Date, at
each time the Shares are delivered to the Agentiasipal on a Settlement Date and promptly afterhe(i) Registration Statement Amendmen
Date and (ii) Company Periodic Report Date, the @amy will furnish or cause to be furnished to ttgeAt the written opinion of Cooley LLP
(* Cooley™) or other counsel to the Company reasonably featisry to the Agent, in the form attached heretdghibit 3(k)-1, and the written
opinion of Sughrue Mion PLLC (* Sughrtipor other counsel to the Company reasonably feafisry to the Agent, in the form attached heretc
as Exhibit 3(k)-3, in each case dated the dateelifety to the Agent, and in each
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case modified as necessary to relate to the RatigsirStatement, the General Disclosure Packagéhanlrospectus as amended and
supplemented, or to the document(s) incorporate@fgyence into the Prospectus, to the time olvdgfi of such opinion and/or letter. In
addition, on or prior to the First Sales Instructidate and, after the First Sales Instruction Datteach time the Shares are delivered to the
Agent as principal on a Settlement Date and prongiter each (i) Registration Statement Amendmaeateldnd (i) Company Periodic Report
Date, the Company will furnish or cause to be fsinaid to the Agent the letter of Cooley, or othemsel to the Company reasonably
satisfactory to the Agent, in the form attacheceteens Exhibit 3(k)-2 and the letter of Sughruepthier counsel reasonably satisfactory to the
Agent, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit Zkjn each case dated the date of delivery to tpenf and in each case modified as necessa
to relate to the Registration Statement, the Géiesalosure Package and the Prospectus as amandeslpplemented, or to the document(s
incorporated by reference into the Prospectudedime of delivery of such letter or, in lieu afth letter, counsel last furnishing such letter to
the Agent shall furnish the Agent with a letter stalntially to the effect that the Agent may relysuth last letter to the same extent as though
each were dated the date of such letter authorrelence (except that statements in such lagtrlstiall be deemed to relate to the Registratio
Statement and the Prospectus as amended and seppdeito the time of delivery of such letter autting reliance). As used in this
paragraph, to the extent there shall be an Apgkcaime on or following the date referred to inuda (i) or (ii) above, promptly shall be
deemed to be any time on or prior to the next sediog Applicable Time.

() On or before the First Sales Instruction Datd,aafter the First Sales Instruction Date, at danh the Shares are delivered to the
Agent as principal on a Settlement Date and prongiter each (i) Registration Statement Amendmaeateladnd (i) Company Periodic Report
Date, the Company will cause Ernst & Young LLPgptirer independent registered public accounting feasonably satisfactory to the Agent,
to furnish to the Agent a letter, dated the datdadivery to the Agent, as the case may be, in faneh substance reasonably satisfactory to the
Agent and its counsel, containing statements afodniration of the type ordinarily included in acceams’ “comfort letters” to underwriters
with respect to the financial statements of the @any and its subsidiaries included or incorpordtgdeference in the Registration Statement,
the General Disclosure Package and the Prospéetusjodified as necessary to relate to the Registr&tatement, the Disclosure Package
and the Prospectus, as amended and supplementedherdocument(s) incorporated by referencetimeaProspectus, to the date of such le
As used in this paragraph, to the extent therd bkeadn Applicable Time on or following the datéereed to in clause (i) or (ii) above, promg
shall be deemed to be any time on or prior to thé succeeding Applicable Time.

(m) The Company consents to Stifel Nicolaus tradindne Company’s Common Stock for Stifel Nicolaas/n account and for the
account of its clients at the same time as sal&hafes occur pursuant to this Agreement or ann3 érgreement, provided that at all times
Agent is in compliance with Regulation M under ft884 Act with respect to the Common Stock and ptedifurther that in no event shall the
Agent trade the Common Stock for its or its afféisl proprietary accounts.

(n) [Reserved].

(o) The Company will cooperate timely with any reable due diligence review conducted by the Ageiils counsel from time to time
in connection with the transactions contemplataglneor in any Terms Agreement, including, withbnitation, and upon reasonable notice
providing information and making available docunsesuhd appropriate corporate officers, during regolsiness hours and at the Company’s
principal offices, as the Agent may reasonably estju

(p) During the time instructions to sell sharesw@gkd pursuant to Section 2(b) hereof or any Telgreement is in effect, the Company
will not, without giving the Agent at least threediness daygrior written notice specifying the nature of theposed sale and the date of <
proposed sale (1) offer, pledge, publicly annouheeintention to sell, sell, contract to sell, selly option or contract to purchase, purchase ar
option or contract to sell, grant any option, rightvarrant for the sale of, lend or otherwise $fanor dispose of, directly or indirectly, any
shares of Common Stock or securities convertilite @n exchangeable or exercisable for or repayalite Common Stock, or file any
registration statement under the 1933 Act with eespo any of the foregoing (other than a shelfstegtion statement under Rule 415 under th
1933 Act, a registration statement on Form S-8ost-effective amendment to the Registration Statehwe (2) enter into any swap or other
agreement or any transaction that transfers in evboin part, directly or indirectly, any of theaemmic consequence of
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ownership of the Common Stock, or any securities/edible into or exchangeable or exercisable farepayable with Common Stock,
whether any such swap or transaction describethuse (1) or (2) above is to be settled by delivdr€ommon Stock or such other securities,
in cash or otherwise. The foregoing sentence sioalapply to (x) any securities issuable upon tter@se or conversion of warrants, options,
convertible securities or other rights either instence prior to the date of this Agreement orasisthereafter in compliance with this Section 3
(p), (y) the Shares to be offered and sold thrahghAgent pursuant to this Agreement or any Terme@ment and (z) equity incentive award:s
approved by the board of directors of the Compargny committee thereof or the issuance of ComntonkSupon exercise thereof.

(q) Ifimmediately prior to the third anniversath¢ “ Renewal Deadlin® of the initial effective date of the Registrati&tatement, any
of the Shares remain unsold, the Company will,rgodhe Renewal Deadline file, if it has not athgalone so and is eligible to do so, an
“automatic shelf registration statement” (as defimeRule 405 under the 1933 Act) relating to ther®s, in a form reasonably satisfactory to
the Agent. If the Company is not eligible to file automatic shelf registration statement, the Comprll, prior to the Renewal Deadline, if it
has not already done so, file a new shelf registragtatement relating to the Shares, in a forregeably satisfactory to the Agent, and will use
commercially reasonable efforts to cause such tragjisn statement to be declared effective witlirdays after the Renewal Deadline. The
Company will use commercially reasonable efforttatee all other action necessary or appropriafetmit the issuance and sale of the Share
to continue as contemplated in the expired redistratatement relating to the Shares. Refereneasirhto the Registration Statement shall
include such new automatic shelf registration stet® or such new shelf registration statementhasase may be.

Section 4. Free Writing Prospectus

(a) (i) The Company represents and agrees thabutithhe prior consent of the Agent (which conseaymot be unreasonably withheld,
delayed or conditioned), it has not made and vatimake any offer relating to the Shares that waoldstitute a “free writing prospectus”
as defined in Rule 405 under the 1933 Act; and

(ii) the Agent represents and agrees that, withfwaiprior consent of the Company (which consent begiven or withheld by the
Company in its sole discretion), it has not made\&il not make any offer relating to the Shareat tvould constitute a free writing
prospectus required to be filed with the Commission

(b) The Company has complied and will comply wkik tequirements of Rule 433 under the 1933 Actiegiple to any Issuer Free
Writing Prospectus (including any free writing ppestus identified in Section 4(a) hereof), inclgptimely filing with the Commission or
retention where required and legending.

Section 5, Payment of Expensé€Ehe Company covenants and agrees with the Apanttie Company will pay or cause to be paid the
following: (i) the fees, disbursements and expensalse Company’s counsel and accountants in cdiumewith the registration of the Shares
under the 1933 Act and all other expenses in cdiorewith the preparation, printing and filing dfet Registration Statement, the Basic
Prospectus, Prospectus Supplement, any Issueliteg Prospectus and the Prospectus and amendraadtsupplements thereto and the
mailing and delivering of copies thereof to the Agéii) the cost of printing or producing this Aggment or any Terms Agreement, any Blue
Sky and Legal Investment Memoranda, closing docusn@mcluding any compilations thereof) and anyeottlocuments in connection with the
offering, purchase, sale and delivery of the Shdi@sall fees and expenses in connection wigtitig the Shares on the Nasdaqg Global Marke
(iv) the cost of preparing the Shares; (v) thegasid charges of any transfer agent or registranpdividend distribution agent; and (vi) all
other costs and expenses incident to the perforenahits obligations hereunder which are not otlisevepecifically provided for in this
Section. The Company further covenants and agrébsive Agent that the Company will pay or causbeagaid the Pro Rata (as defined
below) portion of the following (collectively, tHeLegal Expense¥): (i) all expenses in connection with the qual#tion of the Shares for
offering and sale under state securities laws agighed in Section 3(b) hereof, including the readue fees and disbursements of counsel for
the Agent in connection with such qualification and¢onnection with the Blue Sky and Legal Investt®urveys; (ii) any filing fees incident
to, and the reasonable fees and disbursementsaingebfor the Agent in connection with, any reqdireview by FINRA of the terms of the
sale of the Shares; and (iii) the reasonable fees
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and expenses of counsel to the Agent in conneutitinthis Agreement and the offering contemplatedehy; provided that in no event shall
the amount of Legal Expenses reimbursable exce@®®6 in the aggregate. The “ Pro Ratanount shall be equal to the product obtained b
multiplying (x) the amount of such Legal Expend®ss(y) 1 minus the quotient of the aggregate afigprice of Shares previously sold,
divided by the Maximum Offering Size. The Pro Ratation of the Legal Expenses shall be paid byGbmpany reasonably promptly
following the one (1) year anniversary of the daftéhis Agreement, or in the event of any termioatof this Agreement prior to such time,
reasonably promptly following such termination aldition, in connection with any termination ofgiiigreement following the one (1) year
anniversary of this Agreement, to the extent treeRaita portion of Legal Expenses that would be beirsable by the Company as of the date
of such termination is less than the previouslynimirsed amount, the Agent shall reasonably prompiigburse the Company for any such
difference. It is understood, however, that, ex@spprovided in this Section, and Section 7 hetbefAgent will pay all of its own costs and
expenses, including the fees of its counsel, tearnakes on resale of any of the Shares by itaaydadvertising expenses connected with any
offers it may make.

Section 6. Conditions of AgéestObligation. The obligations of the Agent hereunder shalldigext, in its discretion, to the condition t
all representations and warranties and other s&itnof the Company herein or in certificates of efficer of the Company delivered pursu
to the provisions hereof are true and correct deefime of the execution of this Agreement, theedf any executed Terms Agreement and ¢
of each Registration Statement Amendment Date, @oamnpPeriodic Report Date, Applicable Time and 8atdnt Date, to the condition that
the Company shall have performed all of its oblmyz hereunder theretofore to be performed, anéollmving additional conditions:

(a) The Prospectus Supplement shall have beenviitadthe Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) uritler1933 Act on or prior to the
date hereof and in accordance with Section 3(a&digany other material required to be filed by @@mpany pursuant to Rule 433(d) unde
1933 Act shall have been filed with the Commissigthin the applicable time periods prescribed factsfilings by Rule 433; no stop order
suspending the effectiveness of the RegistratiateBtent or any part thereof shall have been isanddo proceeding for that purpose shall
have been initiated or threatened by the Commisamhno notice of objection of the Commission ® tise of the form of the Registration
Statement or any post-effective amendment thengtsuant to Rule 401(g)(2) under the 1933 Act dhalle been received; no stop order
suspending or preventing the use of the Prospectary Issuer Free Writing Prospectus shall haen li@tiated or threatened by the
Commission; and all requests for additional infotioraon the part of the Commission shall have beenplied with to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Agent.

(b) The Company shall have complied with its olligras in Section 3(k) hereof.
(c) The Company shall have complied with its oliigas in Section 3(l) hereof.

(d) (i) On each date on which the Company deliugsiuctions to sell shares pursuant to Sectio) 2ébeof, on the date of each Terms
Agreement and on such other dates as reasonahigstegl by Agent, the Company will furnish or cataske furnished promptly to the Ager
certificate of an officer in a form reasonably s&tctory to the Agent stating (A) whether the Comrfstock is an “actively traded security”
exempted from the requirements of Rule 101 of Ratgar M under the 9134 Act by subsection (¢)(13wéh rule and (B) the minimum price
for the sale of such Shares pursuant to this Agee¢mnd the maximum number of Shares that mayshedsand sold pursuant to this
Agreement or, alternatively, maximum gross procdeata such sales, as authorized from time to timéhe Companys board of directors or
duly authorized committee thereof or, in connectigtin any amendment, revision or modification oflsuminimum price or maximum Share
number or amount, a new certificate with respeetdto and (ii) on each date that the Company igatald to deliver a certificate to the Agent
pursuant to Section 3(j), the Agent shall haveiwecka certificate of executive officers of the Quamy, one of whom shall be the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Accounting Officer, Treasu, or Executive Vice President in the area oftedmarkets and investments, dated as of
the date thereof, to the effect that (A) therelteesn no Material Adverse Change since the datéwkioh information is given in the General
Disclosure Package and the Prospectus as then athendupplemented, (B) the representations anchntégs in Section 1 hereof are true anc
correct as of such date and (C) the Company hasglehwith all of the agreements entered into inrection with the transaction
contemplated herein and satisfied all conditiong®part to be performed or satisfied on or betbeedate of the certificate.
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(e) Since the date of the latest audited finarat@ements then included or incorporated by reterémthe General Disclosure Package
and the Prospectus, no Material Adverse Changésina occurred.

(f) The Company shall have complied with the primris of Section 3(c) hereof with respect to theetinfurnishing of prospectuses.

(g) On such dates as reasonably requested by thet Ape Company shall have conducted due diligeassions, in form and substance
satisfactory to the Agent.

(h) All filings with the Commission required by Rufi24 under the 1933 Act to have been filed by éqalicable Time or related
Settlement Date shall have been made within thécatybe time period prescribed for such filing byl® 424 (without reliance on Rule 424(b)

(8).
(i) The Shares shall have received approval ftintison the Nasdaqg Global Market prior to the fiBsttlement Date.

(j) Prior to any Settlement Date, the Company shalle furnished to the Agent such further informatidocuments or certificates as the
Agent may reasonably request.

Section 7. Indemnification

(a) The Company will indemnify and hold harmless Agent against any losses, claims, damages dlitles) joint or several, to which
the Agent may become subject, under the 1933 Actlmrwise, insofar as such losses, claims, damagéebilities (or actions in respect
thereof) arise out of or are based upon an untateraent or alleged untrue statement of a matextalcontained in the Registration Statement
the Basic Prospectus, the Prospectus Supplemémt &rospectus or any amendment or supplementahargy Issuer Free Writing Prospec
or any “issuer information” filed or required to filed pursuant to Rule 433(d) under the 1933 Acfarise out of or are based upon the
omission or alleged omission to state therein ar@tfact required to be stated therein or necgdsamake the statements therein not
misleading, or arise out of or are based on the gamyis failure to deliver Shares on any Settlenfate as required pursuant to Section 2(f),
and will reimburse the Agent for any legal or otegpenses reasonably incurred by the Agent in adimmewith investigating or defending any
such action or claim as such expenses are incyredided, however, that the Company shall notddad in any such case to the extent that
any such loss, claim, damage or liability arisesafwr is based upon an untrue statement or allegérue statement or omission or alleged
omission made in the Registration Statement, ttecBrospectus, the Prospectus Supplement or tsp&tus, or any amendment or
supplement thereto, or any Issuer Free Writing faoss, in reliance upon and in strict conformifyhwwritten information furnished to the
Company by the Agent expressly for use therein.

(b) The Agent will indemnify and hold harmless tbempany against any losses, claims, damages ditiegbto which the Company m
become subject, under the 1933 Act or otherwisafar as such losses, claims, damages or liabilitieactions in respect thereof) arise out of
or are based upon an untrue statement or allegegeustatement of a material fact contained inRkgistration Statement, the Basic
Prospectus, the Prospectus Supplement or the Rtasper any amendment or supplement thereto,oltssuer Free Writing Prospectus, or
arise out of or are based upon the omission ogedl@mission to state therein a material fact reguio be stated therein or necessary to mak
the statements therein not misleading, in eachtcade extent, but only to the extent, that suctiue statement or alleged untrue statement o
omission or alleged omission was made in the Redigh Statement, the Basic Prospectus, the Pragp8cpplement or the Prospectus, or
such amendment or supplement thereto, or any I$seerWriting Prospectus, in reliance upon andrintsconformity with written informatio
furnished to the Company by the Agent expressluga therein; and will reimburse the Company for legal or other expenses reasonably
incurred by the Company in connection with inveddtiigg or defending any such action or claim as sxgfenses are incurred.

(c) Promptly after receipt by an indemnified partyder subsection (a) or (b) above of notice ofctmamencement of any action, such
indemnified party shall, if a claim in respect thefris to be made against the indemnifying partyaursuch subsection, notify the indemnifying
party in writing of the commencement thereof;

18



but the omission so to notify the indemnifying pashall not relieve the indemnifying party from digbility which it may have to any
indemnified party otherwise than under such sulim@etxcept and then only to the extent such ind&imy party is materially prejudiced
thereby. In case any such action shall be brouggihat any indemnified party and it shall notife timdemnifying party of the commencement
thereof, the indemnifying party shall be entitlecparticipate therein and, to the extent thatatlshish, jointly with any other indemnifying
party similarly notified, to assume the defensedbg with counsel satisfactory to such indemnifpedty (who shall not, except with the
consent of the indemnified party, be counsel totdemnifying party), and, after notice from thelémnifying party to such indemnified party
of its election so to assume the defense thereefindemnifying party shall not be liable to sustiémnified party under this Section 7 for any
legal expenses of other counsel or any other exseiseach case subsequently incurred by sucminified party, in connection with the
defense thereof other than reasonable costs aftigadion. No indemnifying party shall, without theitten consent of the indemnified party,
effect the settlement or compromise of, or congetite entry of any judgment with respect to, aagging or threatened action or claim in
respect of which indemnification or contributionyrt@e sought hereunder (whether or not the indesuhifiarty is an actual or potential party tc
such action or claim) unless such settlement, comfae or judgment (i) includes an unconditiona¢ask of the indemnified party from all
liability arising out of such action or claim ang floes not include a statement as to or an adomss fault, culpability or a failure to act, by
on behalf of any indemnified party.

(d) If the indemnification provided for in this S&mn 7 is unavailable to hold harmless an inderedifparty under subsection (a) or
(b) above in respect of any losses, claims, damaigksbilities (or actions in respect thereof)aeéd to therein, then each indemnifying party
shall contribute to the amount paid or payabledmshsndemnified party as a result of such lossleans, damages or liabilities (or actions in
respect thereof) in such proportion as is approptiareflect the relative benefits received by @mmpany on the one hand and the Agent on
the other from the offering of the Shares to whdabh loss, claim, damage or liability (or actiorréspect thereof) relates. If, however, the
allocation provided by the immediately precedingterce is not permitted by applicable law, therhéademnifying party shall contribute to
such amount paid or payable by such indemnifietyparsuch proportion as is appropriate to refleat only such relative benefits but also the
relative fault of the Company on the one hand &edAgent on the other in connection with the statei: or omissions which resulted in such
losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actiongspect thereof), as well as any other releegnitable considerations. The relative benefits
received by the Company on the one hand and thatAgethe other shall be deemed to be in the saopogion as the total net proceeds fr
the offering (before deducting expenses) receiwethe Company bear to the total commissions reddbyethe Agent. The relative fault shall
be determined by reference to, among other thimbgsther the untrue or alleged untrue statementnoéterial fact or the omission or alleged
omission to state a material fact relates to infiom supplied by the Company on the one handeoAdent on the other and the parties’
relative intent, knowledge, access to informatind apportunity to correct or prevent such stateroemmission. The Company and the Agent
agree that it would not be just and equitable iftdbution pursuant to this subsection (d) wereedatned by pro rata allocation or by any othel
method of allocation which does not take accourthefequitable considerations referred to abovhissubsection (d). The amount paid or
payable by an indemnified party as a result ofldlsees, claims, damages or liabilities (or actiongspect thereof) referred to above in this
subsection (d) shall be deemed to include any legather expenses reasonably incurred by suchrindied party in connection with
investigating or defending any such action or claWatwithstanding the provisions of this subsectid) the Agent shall not be required to
contribute any amount in excess of the amount biglwtine total compensation received by the Agetit waspect to sales of the Shares sol
it to the public exceeds the amount of any damagdesh the Agent has otherwise been required tolyyagason of such untrue or alleged
untrue statement or omission or alleged omissianp&tson guilty of fraudulent misrepresentatiortifimi the meaning of Section 11(f) of the
1933 Act) shall be entitled to contribution fromygrerson who was not guilty of such fraudulent ejisesentation.

(e) The obligations of the Company under this $ecti shall be in addition to any liability whicheti@ompany may otherwise have and
shall extend, upon the same terms and conditiortbget directors, officers, employees, attorneysagehts of the Agent and to each person, if
any, who controls the Agent within the meaninghef 1933 Act and each broker dealer affiliate ofAlgent; and the obligations of the Agent
under this Section 7 shall be in addition to aaypility which the Agent may otherwise have and lsixetiend, upon the same terms and
conditions, to each director, officer, employeértey and agent of the Company and to each peifsamy, who controls the Company within
the meaning of the 1933 Act.
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Section 8. Representations, Warranties and Agresni@iSurvive Delivery The respective indemnities, agreements, reprasens,
warranties and other statements of the Companyhendgent, as set forth in this Agreement or maderton behalf of them, respectively,
pursuant to this Agreement, shall remain in futttoand effect, regardless of any investigatioraor statement as to the results thereof) mad
by or on behalf of the Agent or any controlling T of the Agent, or the Company, or any officedioector or controlling person of the
Company, and shall survive delivery of and paynfenthe Shares.

Section 9. No Advisory or Fiduciary Relationshiphe Company acknowledges and agrees that (Agleat is acting solely in the
capacity of an arm’s length contractual countegptrtthe Company with respect to the offering oa®is contemplated hereby (including in
connection with determining the terms of such afigr and (ii) the Agent has not assumed an advisofiduciary responsibility in favor of t
Company with respect to the offering contemplatedthy or the process leading thereto (irrespectiwehether the Agent has advised or is
currently advising the Company on other mattergnyr other obligation to the Company except thégakibns expressly set forth in this
Agreement and (i) the Company has consultedvits Eegal and financial advisors to the extent #med appropriate. The Company agrees
that it will not claim that the Agent has rendeegtVisory services of any nature or respect, or av@duciary or similar duty to the Company,
in connection with such transaction or the pro¢eading thereto.

Section 10, Termination

(a) The Company shall have the right, by givingtteri notice as hereinafter specified, to termitlaite Agreement in its sole discretion at
any time. Any such termination shall be withoublidy of any party to any other party, except tliatvith respect to any pending sale through
the Agent for the Company, the obligations of tlempany, including in respect of compensation ofAgent, shall remain in full force and
effect notwithstanding such termination; and (i fprovisions of Section 1, Section 5, Sectiond &action 8 of this Agreement shall remain
in full force and effect notwithstanding such temation.

(b) The Agent shall have the right, by giving weittnotice as hereinafter specified, to terminateAlgreement in its sole discretion at
time. Any such termination shall be without liatyilof any party to any other party, except thatth respect to any pending sale through the
Agent for the Company, the obligations of the Ageimll remain in full force and effect notwithstéamgisuch termination; and (i) the
provisions of Section 1, Section 5, Section 7 aedtiBn 8 of this Agreement shall remain in fullderand effect notwithstanding such
termination.

(c) Unless earlier terminated pursuant to thisi8eco0, this Agreement shall automatically terménapon the issuance and sale of all of
the Shares through the Agent on the terms and cutbjéhe conditions set forth herein; providhdt any such termination pursuant to this
clause (c) shall in all cases be deemed to prahaieSection 1, Section 5, Section 7 and SectiohtBis Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect.

(d) This Agreement shall remain in full force arfféet until and unless terminated pursuant to ®ectio(a), (b) or (c) above or otherwise
by mutual agreement of the parties; provitieat any such termination by mutual agreement osyant to this clause (d) shall in all cases be
deemed to provide that Section 1, Section 5, Se@tiand Section 8 of this Agreement shall remaifuliforce and effect.

(e) Any termination of this Agreement shall be effee on the date specified in such notice of teation;_providedhat such termination
shall not be effective until the close of businesshe date of receipt of such notice by the Agerihe Company, as the case may be. If such
termination shall occur prior to the Settlementdfatr any sale of Shares, such sale shall setledordance with the provisions of Section .
hereof.

(f In the case of any purchase by the Agent pursteea Terms Agreement, the Agent may terminateAreement, at any time at or
prior to the Settlement Date (i) if there has bestm;e the time of execution of this Agreementince the respective dates as of which
information is given in the General Disclosure Ragkor the Prospectus, any Material Adverse Chandé) if there has occurred any
Material Adverse Change in the financial marketshizm United States or the international financiarkets, any outbreak of hostilities or
escalation thereof or other calamity or crisismy ahange or development involving a prospectivenge in national or international political,
financial or economic conditions, in each caseettfiect of which is such as to make it, in the judgnof
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the Agent, impracticable or inadvisable to market$hares or to enforce contracts for the saldafes, or (iii) if trading in any securities of
the Company has been suspended or materially Grbigethe Commission or the Nasdaq Global Markeif, mading generally on the Americ
Stock Exchange or the NYSE or Nasdaq Global Mahmkstbeen suspended or materially limited, or mimmnou maximum prices for trading
have been fixed, or maximum ranges for prices e required, by any of said exchanges or by system or by order of the Commission,
FINRA or any other governmental authority, or @inaterial disruption has occurred in commerciakbeg or securities settlement or
clearance services in the United States, or (@)a&nking moratorium has been declared by eithderaéor New York authorities.

Section 11. NoticesAll statements, requests, notices and agreerhenésinder shall be in writing, and if to Stifel bigus shall be
delivered or sent by mail, telex or facsimile trassion to:

Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated
One South Street, 5 Floor

Baltimore, Maryland 21202

Fax No. (443) 224-1273

Attention: Syndicate Department

and if to the Company to:

Vical Incorporated

10390 Pacific Center Court

San Diego, CA 92121

Facsimile: (858) 646-1100

Attention: President and Chief Executive Officer

Any such statements, requests, notices or agreeraball take effect upon receipt thereof.

Section 12, PartiesThis Agreement shall be binding upon, and inaielg to the benefit of, the Agent and the Compang, to the
extent provided in Sections 7 and 8 hereof, thie@f§, directors, employees, attorneys and agénbkedCompany and the Agent and each
person who controls the Company or the Agent, hait tespective heirs, executors, administratarsgassors and assigns, and no other pi
shall acquire or have any right under or by vidfi¢his Agreement. No purchaser of Shares throbghAigent shall be deemed a successor or
assign by reason merely of such purchase.

Section 13. Time of the EssencEime shall be of the essence of this Agreemestuged herein, the term “business day” shall megn a
day when the Commission’s office in Washington, Ds®pen for business.

Section 14. Waiver of Jury TrialThe Company and the Agent hereby irrevocably @aie the fullest extent permitted by applicable,la
any and all right to trial by jury in any legal peeding arising out of or relating to this Agreetanthe transactions contemplated hereby.

Section 15. Governing LawTHIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUEIN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REFERENCE TIOS PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW.

Section 16. Counterpart§his Agreement and any Terms Agreement may beutad by any one or more of the parties hereto and
thereto in any number of counterparts, each of wkiall be deemed to be an original, but all sespective counterparts shall together
constitute one and the same instrument. This Agee¢rend any Terms Agreement may be delivered bypanty by facsimile or other
electronic transmission.

Section 17. SeverabilityThe invalidity or unenforceability of any Sectjgraragraph or provision of this Agreement shatlaftect the
validity or enforceability of any other Section ragraph or provision hereof. If any Section, paagfror provision of this Agreement is for any
reason determined to be invalid or unenforceahbrget shall be deemed to be made such minor chéaigg®nly such minor changes) as are
necessary to make it valid and enforceable.
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If the foregoing is in accordance with your undansling of our agreement, please sign and retuttmet@€ompany a counterpart hereof,

whereupon this instrument, along with all countetqawill become a binding agreement between thenAgnd the Company in accordance
with its terms.

Very truly yours,
VICAL INCORPORATED
By: /s/ Jill Broadfoot

Name: Jill Broadfoot
Title:  Chief Financial Office

Accepted as of the date hereof:
STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY, INCORPORATE|

By: /s/ Daniel J. Covatta
Name: Daniel J. Covatt
Title: Managing Directo




Annex 1
VICAL INCORPORATED

Common Stock
($0.01 par value per share)

TERMS AGREEMENT

STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY, INCORPORATED
One South Street, 5 Floor

Baltimore, MD 21202

Attn: Syndicate Department

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Vical Incorporated, a Delaware corporation (thegh@any”), proposes, subject to the terms and conditidated herein and in the At-
the-Market Equity Offering Sales Agreement, datedémber 7, 2012 (the_* Sales Agreemgnbetween the Company and Stifel, Nicolaus &
Company, Incorporated (the “ Ageii to issue and sell to the Agent the securitigecified and on the terms set forth in Schediilereto (the
“ Purchased Securiti€}.

Each of the provisions of the Sales Agreement petifically related to the solicitation by the Ageas agent of the Company, of offers
to purchase securities is incorporated herein f@reace in its entirety, and shall be deemed tpareof this Terms Agreement to the same
extent as if such provisions had been set forfaliherein. Each of the representations and waigarset forth therein shall be deemed to have
been made at and as of the date of this Terms Agmeeand the Applicable Time, except that eachessgrtation and warranty in Section 1 of
the Sales Agreement which makes reference to the&pBctus (as therein defined) shall be deemed #orépresentation and warranty as of the
date of the Sales Agreement in relation to thep&ois, and also a representation and warranti/the date of this Terms Agreement and the
Settlement Date in relation to the Prospectus amnded and supplemented to relate to the Purchasedittes.

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth Inemed in the Sales Agreement which are incorporagedin by reference, the Company
agrees to issue and sell to the Agent and the Edtees to purchase from the Company the numbshaves of the Purchased Securities at the
time and place and at the purchase price setifo@ithedule hereto.

If the foregoing is in accordance with your undansting of our agreement, please sign and retuttmet@€ompany a counterpart hereof,
whereupon this instrument, along with all countetsawill become a binding agreement between thenrAgnd the Company in accordance
with its terms.
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Very truly yours,
VICAL INCORPORATED

By:

Name:
Title:

Accepted as of the date here

STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY, INCORPORATE!

By:
Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Vijay B. Samant, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Vical Incorporated

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiging, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegjig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 7, 201

By: /s/ VIJAY B. SAMANT

Vijay B. Saman
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

[, Jill M. Broadfoot, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Vical Incorporated

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiging, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegjig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 7, 201

By: /s/ JILL M. BROADFOOT

Jill M. Broadfoot
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (18 U.S.C. 8 1350, as adopted), Vijay B. &aimthe Chief Executive
Officer of Vical Incorporated (the “Company”), hésecertifies that, to the best of his knowledge:

1. The Company’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtfierperiod ended September 30, 2012, to whichGhisfication is attached as
Exhibit 32.1 (the “Periodic Report”), fully compfewith the requirements of Section 13(a) or Sectibfd) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,;

2. The information contained in the Periodic Refaily presents, in all material respects, thaficial condition of the Company at
the end of the period covered by the Periodic Regradl results of operations of the Company forpiieod covered by the Periodic
Report.

Dated: November 7, 201

/s/ VIJAY B. SAMANT
Vijay B. Saman
Chief Executive Office

THIS CERTIFICATION “ACCOMPANIES” THE FORM 10-Q TO WICH IT RELATES, IS NOT DEEMED FILED WITH THE SEC WD
IS NOT TO BE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO ANY ANG OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933
AS AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19345 AMENDED (WHETHER MADE BEFORE OR AFTER THE
DATE OF THE FORM 10-Q), IRRESPECTIVE OF ANY GENERANCORPORATION LANGUAGE CONTAINED IN SUCH FILING. A
SIGNED ORIGINAL OF THIS CERTIFICATION HAS BEEN PRARED TO THE COMPANY AND WILL BE RETAINED BY THE
COMPANY AND FURNISHED TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANE COMMISSION OR ITS STAFF UPON REQUEST.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (18 U.S.C. 8§ 1350, as adopted), Jill M. Bifoat, the Chief Financial
Officer of Vical Incorporated (the “Company”), hésecertifies that, to the best of her knowledge:

1. The Company’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtfierperiod ended September 30, 2012, to whichGhisfication is attached as
Exhibit 32.2 (the “Periodic Report”), fully compfewith the requirements of Section 13(a) or Sectibfd) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,;

2. The information contained in the Periodic Refaily presents, in all material respects, thaficial condition of the Company at
the end of the period covered by the Periodic Regradl results of operations of the Company forpiieod covered by the Periodic
Report.

Dated: November 7, 201

/s/ JILL M. BROADFOOT
Jill M. Broadfoot
Chief Financial Office

THIS CERTIFICATION “ACCOMPANIES” THE FORM 10-Q TO WICH IT RELATES, IS NOT DEEMED FILED WITH THE SEC WD
IS NOT TO BE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO ANY ANG OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933
AS AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19345 AMENDED (WHETHER MADE BEFORE OR AFTER THE
DATE OF THE FORM 10-Q), IRRESPECTIVE OF ANY GENERANCORPORATION LANGUAGE CONTAINED IN SUCH FILING. A
SIGNED ORIGINAL OF THIS CERTIFICATION HAS BEEN PRARED TO THE COMPANY AND WILL BE RETAINED BY THE
COMPANY AND FURNISHED TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANE COMMISSION OR ITS STAFF UPON REQUES




